
BOARD'S REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Seventeenth Annual Report oftheComlanyand the Sixth Annual Report ofJana Small Finance Bank Limitea tog"tt l.*itf, tf,"Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31d March, 2023.

1 TINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATION$ SIATE OF ATFAIRS I KrMN

Particulars Fy 2022-2023 Fy 202r-2022Total Income 3,699.88 3,050.30
1,474.99 1,336.75

Proyisions and contineencies
1,284.57 1,138.82

7 44.40 569.32Profit forthe vear 255.97 5.40
^uu, sur prus/(toss, orougnt torward lrom
previousyear (4,083.03) (4,083.1s)
Amor.rnt available for appropriiE;
4ppropnarrons
Dividend & Dividend Tax
Transfer to Sratutory Reserri uniiii.tion-E
ofthe Banking Regulation Act and other 80 82 5_28

Jurprus carneo ro Batance sheet (3,907.A7) (4,0a3.02)

Note: ' Figures for the previousyea/s figures have been restated wherever necessary, to arign
with the figures for the current year.

CHANGE IN THE UATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY:

There is no change in the businessofthe Bank during the year.

DIVIDEND :

Your Board has not declared or recommended any dividend for the financial year under

ISSUANCE O} CAPITAL :

During the year under review, S,719 equiry shares of face value of Rs. 1O/- per share wereallorr-eo, rn rerms otexercise ofunirs against Restricted stock units, underth; Esop schemeto a few employees of the Bank; 2Sg,11S equiry shares of face vaiue of n.. iO7--0...f,r."
were allotted ir terms of a preferential iss;e io ,ana Hotdings Limired ,.JiZ,tiO-pi,OOO
compulsorily convertibre preference shares of Rs. 10 each weie alron"J t ipc ar-i" vr sp
Pte. Ltd in terms ofa preferential issue. Further, 33,03,306 equiry ,h"r"r;i R". 1O 

";;; *"."allotted in terms ofa rights issue to existing sharetrotaers and nJwsttai"i"fa".". 
*"'

ls_:1^31s1]tlarch 2023, rhe paid up share capitat stood ar Rs, 3,24,97,87,030 divided inror,+y,./u,/uJ equrry shares of Rs. 10/_ each and 27,00,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 1O/-



Funds raised and Credit Ratings I

Duringtheyearthe bank raised funds by way ofissue oflnter_Bank Participatory Certificates

fr"st.!). ii'" ;,t""ai"g lBPcs as on 3 i" Mar 2023 was Rs 1'135 00 crore' outstandingr'vith

ii.* i""i. rir. r"a".i Bank Ltd (Rs 573 crore,) Axis Bank Ltd (Rs 462 crores]' HDFC

Bank Ltd [Rs. 100 crore).

The bank also availed refinance facility ofRs 1,181crores from SIDBI and Rs 2'000 Crores

from NABARD during the Year.

ICRA reaffirmed its ratin8 of [ICRA] BBB (stable) in March' 2023 lor thesubordinete deht for

"" "r"rri-"i 
n . +: o ..o-.". io. ra'a itionit nt z 50 crores issuance of Tie r- 2 debt' the rating

has been taken, howeverthe issuance is pending'

The Bank repaid Rs. 26 crores ofsubordinate debt (NCD) that matured during the year'

Capital Adequacy I

As Der operating guidelines for Small Finance Banks, the Bank is required to mainLlin a

,iri.r"ii"roJfa"qracy Ratio of 15% with a minimum common EquityTier I (cET l) CAR

of 7 .5o4.

As on March 31, 2023, the Capital Adequary P'atio of the Bank stood at 15 57% and the

Common EquityTierl ratio stood at 13 02%.

BOARD MEETINGS:

Board meetings are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than.120 days

i"*"*i*"-i"r*.r,ive meeiings. The Board of Directors met 10 (Ten) times during the

i.r".i"i ,"r.. 0uarterlv meetingi were held on 17th May 2022; 56 August 2022; 5$ August

)iiziiiliri"ey.t"teei*el; t0* Nlvember 2022 and 7d February 2023 to approve financial

results and deliberate various business updates'

Also, the Board met at shorter notice, on 31i May 2OZ2t 24th tune 2022;27d'l]uly 2022 and

i+" rll-".v iozs. 
"ccord 

approval for preferen tial and-rights issue and 191-t:'l:"'n*
a"t"ntr." it!r". Further, the 6;ard met on 29s March 2023 for approvalofthe budget for

the W 2023-24.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERTAL PERSONNEL:

During the year und€r revi€w, there were changes in the composition of the Board

r',r.. i"1"* 6"ftrl-a Mr. vikram Gandhi (who completed his first-term-as an Independent

Directo'r) resigned from the directorship of the Bank w e f 96 April Z0ZZ and 7n February

2023 respectively.

Further, Mr. P Vijaya Kumarwas appointed as an Independent Directorwe f24d March

2023.

As on 31* March 2023 the composition ofthe Board was as below:

1. Dr. Subhash C. IGuntia
2. Mr.Ajay Kanwal
3. Mr. Pamesh Famanathan
4. Mr. R. Ramaseshan
5. Mgs. Chitra Talwar
6. Mr, Rahul Khosla

- Part Time Chairman, lndependent Director

- Managing Director & ChiefExecutive Ofhcer

- Non Executive Director
- lndependent Director

- lndependent Director
- Non Executive Director



7. Mr. K Srinivas Nayak
8. Mr. P. Vijaya Kumar

- lndependent Director
- lndependent Director

7.

If ,:iI 
Yr,rp"_,rted_Mr 

p. Vijaya Kumar as an Addirional Director (lndependent)
pursuant to Secrion 161 of the Companies Act, 201 3 wirh effefi fro. Z+* U'"..i'Zozg. nrequired under SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requiremlnsj 

-n"gri",i""., 
ZOfS, 

"special resoturion has to be passed in the ensuinS annu"r ,J"ting oi *iihi"1-r, *" iil r.r*.rrom rne date ot appointment, whichever is earlier, in connection with the appoinUnent ofMr. P. viiaya xumar. Hence necessaryspecial rerotuuo, in tr,i. i"g"J,r;. pr*'iir,i","*
0rdinary Ceneral Meetingdared 30i t,iarcrr zoz3.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Th-e Company has re_ceived necessary declarations from each lndependenI Director pursuan!
ro rne provrslons ol.Section 149{7) ofthe Companies Act, 20 t 3, thar he/she meets the cnteria
or rnoependence taid down in the provisions ofSection 149(6) ofthe Companies Act, 2O13.

Further, the Board hereby confirms tha! all Independent Directors of rhe Company fulfil theconditions as specified. in 
_SEB| 

(Lisring Obtigations and Oi*f "ir* 
'-i'"qri."r*t 

lRe8ulatjon,2015 and the Corhpanies Act,20l3 and all lndependent Diieao,s are
rnoependent ot the management,

MATERIAL CHAI{GES & COMMITMENTS ATFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION Of THE
COMPANY, BETWEf,N THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND TTTT OIii OT TTTT
R.EPORT:

There wer_e no materialchanges and commitments between the end ofthe financialvear and(ne oate ot rne neporL which affect the financial position ofthe Company

COMPOSTTION OF AUDIT &COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE:

In:9o.lrLV h1.^""T4,!d wirh the requirementsofSection 177 ofthe Companies Act, z013and_(egulation l8 of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requireme;tsl Regulatlons,
2015, relating to rhe composition of the Audir Committee. As "" St; Mi;i, i,;i:, th"composition ofthe Audit committee was as follows:

Mr. K. S.inivas Nayak (Committee Chairman)
Mr. R P.amaseshan
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan
Mr. Rahul Khosla
Mrs. Chitra Talwar

The terms of reference ofthe Audit & Compliance Committee are as per the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies AcL 2013 and;s prescribed by the Reserv" Sr"k;f I;di".

The Audit & Compliance commiftee met 8 (Eight) times during the financialyear, on 166 May
ZO22;176 May 2O22t 4d'August 20Z2; Sd, Auguit 2022;96 N-ovember 2OZj; rOiir,i.*.n*
2O22i 6d Febntery 2023 and 7d February 2023.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Bank has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration policy on Directors, Appointment
and Remuneration including criteria for determining qualiications, po.itiuu'Itt.iUr,"r,
independence of a Director and other matters as proviled under the piovistons oiiectlon178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy ts 'avaitaUte ai ttrewebsite of the Company at www.ianabank.com (httpsf/www.lanafank.o-7'"fort-
us/leadeNhip-govemance/policies/J.

8.

9,



10, VTGILMECHANISM:

Pursuantto the provisions ofsection 177(9) & (1OJ ofthe Companies Act' 2013'the Company

has established; vigil mechanism for directors and emPloyees to report genuine concems'

ifr" rlgii.".tt-i.ti'f"rms a part of the whistle Blower Polic, which has been approved by

ar," i"l.J oior""*. in their meeting held on sth August 2014 as a NBFC-MII .After
.onrr"..ion into 

" 
S."ll Finance Bank the Bank Board has approved the Whistle Blower

i.li.y 
"rJ 

viiir""." p"licy, in their meeting held on 8d' Februarv 2018 The Policv has been

hosted on the website of the Bank.

The Bank has an Anti_Sexual Harassment Policyto promote a workplace that is free of sexual

harassment. A committee to investigate and redress any Srievance has been formed' which

meets on need basis.

DIRECTOR S RESPONSIBILTTY STATEMENT:

ln puFuaDce of section 134 (5) of the Compantes Act, 2013, the DirectoB herebv

confirm thatr

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have heen

followed alongwith proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistendy and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view ofthe state ofaffairs of the Bank as at 31$ March 2023 and of the profitand loss ofthe

Bank for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sumcient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthis Act for safeguarding the assets

of the Bank and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitiesj

(d) the directors have prepared the annualaccounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Bank and

thatsuch internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively'

(0 the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

all applicable laws and that such systems wereadequate and operating effectively'

TNFORMATION ABOUTTHE FINANCIAL PERTORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/ lV:

The Bank does not have any subsidiary or associate company'

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to section 92[3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014, an extract ofOe annual return

in the form MGT 9, a part of this Board's Report is attached(ANNEf,IIBEI)'

11.

72



14 AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors

The RBI vide its letter no. DOS.CO.RPD.No.S19Bg/OA.?Z.OOS/ZOZ2_23 dated l\ne 22,2022,has. approved 
-the lroposal of appoinrment of M/s. M. t(. rvi"ri. A c" iii"ra ul..Brahmayya & Co, Chartered Accountants as staotory auditors ofthe Bank for the financialyear 2022-23,

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed Mr. Nasendra D. Rao, practising Company Secretary (Membership
No.FCS.5553), Bangalore, as the-secretariat Auaim. a, p"er tt 

"'p.Jrti"". "isL.,i"" zo+ 
"fthe-Companies Acr,2013 for the financial year ZO22-23. The Se;rehriat 

"raiir"po.t 
i..u"abyhim is annexed to this repon asANNE{URE V.

QualificatioDs, Reservadons or adverse remarks or disclaimeB made lry the Auditors:

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Staturory Auditors, Report whichrequire anyexpranation from the Board ofDire*ors. The staruro; audiio,'r,"rJJ*o."ar"o
an unmodified opinion in rhe audir reports in respe* ofrhe Auditel Finr".iris,"i"rl"" r".the finan cial year ended 3 tsr March. i023.

Furthet there are no qualificationt reservations or adverse remark ordisclaimers made bythe Secretarial Auditor in his Secretarial Audit Report

DEIAILS OT FMUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS,IF ANY:

Nit.

CONSERVATION OF f,NERGY, TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
OUTGo:

(A) ConseFation of eoerE/: Not applicabte

(B) TechrDlo$r absorption: Not Appticable

(C) foreigD exchange eamings and Outgo :

Fo.eign exchange eamings: NILand Foreign exchange expend iture : Rs. 2.4S Crcres.

DETAILS OFADEQUACY OF INTERNAI FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH RESPECT TO THE
FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS:

I1","9.".9..h= adopted poticies end procedures for ensuring the orderty and efficientconctuctot its business, including adherence to the Bank! policies, the safegr.rird ofits assets,the prevention and detection of frauds and erroq th; accuracy 
"ra_."."f"i"*a. "faccounling records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial ;isclosures.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

ll^",.:rlk P: put in place a comprehensive Risk Management framework supporred by
ctetailed poiicies and. processesfor management of Crcdit Risk, Market Risk Liq;idity Risk,
uperational Risk and various other risks.

15
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19

The fusk ManaSement Committee of the Board has established a formal Risk Appetite

iui"."nt *f,i.if, govems the risk-taking activities in the Bank The Risk Management

;;;;;;; ;;;;.d. 
""ersight 

on the implementation of various risk manasement policies

il';;;;;J;;l""ko i, .h""g" or ieview of these and other policies from the risk

perspective.

CORPOMTE SOCIAL RESPONSIBTLTY POLICY :

Pursuant to tle provisions of section 135 and Schedule vll of the CompaniesAcL 2013'

in" iin Co..itt"" ot the Board ofDirectors was formed to recommend [a) the policy on

i"-".r,. s..i"f Resoonsibilitv (CSR) and (b) implementation of CSR Projects or

p."li"r."ii. u" ,"al,rtaken bi tLe B;nk as per the csR Policv The csR policy has hPen

duly approved by the Board of Directors.

REASON FORNOT SPENDINGT NA

ANNUALREPORT ON CSR:

Annual Reporton CSR in the prescribed format is enclosed ANNEXURE II

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS I

ParticularsofcontractsorArrangementswithRelatedpartiesreferredtoinsectionlSS(1)
in Form AOC- 2 is as in ANNEXURE - IIt.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 166 May 2022 rook

iote of tne evaluation report of the Board's performadce including Directors' own

f".for.rn." "nd.o.rnittee; 
ofthe Board. The Committee deliberated on various evaluation

;ttributes indicated in the evaluation questionnaire for all directors and after due

deliberations made an obiective assessment and evaluated thar all directors in the Board

t 
"r" "J"qurt" "*p".ti.e 

drawn from diverse backgrounds and businessesand bring specific

competencies relevant to the Bank's businessand operations'

The Committee found that the pefformance of all Directors was quite satisfactory and the

irr.ai"rirg .f,ft" g*td and it;committees were quite effective The Committee evalueted

ifre co-poiition of*e ooard and its performance as a whole and expressed satisfaction in

ihi. ."gi.a. fr.ttt"., tfte committee'a suggestion/feedback were duly taken note of by the

Management.

Emptoyees Stock OPtion Scheme. (ESOP):

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors administers and

monitors *re fmptoyee stock option Scheme in accordance with the ESOP schemeapproved

by shareholders.

20
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23

Details of Employees Stock Options as on 31i March 2023.

Employee Name Designation
No. ofOptions
cranted till
date

Ajay lGnwal Managing Director and Chief
Executive omcer

ESOP | 567647
RSU: 88029

Buvanesh
Tarashankar

Chief Financial oflicer ESOP:13343
RSU : 688

Lakshmi R N Company Secretary ESoP:3577
RSU: 74

2. Any other employee who received grant of options amounting to S% or more of
options granted during thatyear: NIL

3. Identified employees who were granled option, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding,l0/6 of the hsued capital (excluding ourstanding warrants and i"n'r"oiong
ol the bank at tle time ofgrant NIL

RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR:

Details / Disclosures of Ratio ofRemuneration to each Director to the median remunerauon
ofemployees is inANNEXURE - III.

LISTING wlTH STOCK EXCHAIIGES:

The Bank has listed its debt securities (i.e. non-convertible debentures] on the BSEand
confirmsthat ithas paid theannual listingfees for the year Fy 2023-2i.

March 31, 2023

Total Options granted and outstanding
ar the beginning ofthe year 3,24,95A 20,115

Less: o ptions fo rfei tedl tapGlliiins-
the vear 2,4A,793 1,16,1't 3

Less : options exercised d
options oustanding as-iiii-i ifii

t2,15,A17

2,08.511
- Yet to Vest 2,19,272 4,70,549

Employee - wise details ofoptions granted during the year.

1. Key Managerial Personnel:

Particulars EsoP I EsoP I EsoP I EsoP

zotT I zora I 2ot7 | 2018

4,5461 4.70.2t5 16.0AA rc349

1,0411 3,147

94,969 | 27,599

78,881 12.573

76,0AA | 15,026



24 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

A report on corporate covernance as applicable to the Bank is included as a part ofthis

Annual Report (ANNEXURE IV).

Dr. Subhash c. xhuntia
Non-Executive Chairman

Date : $n May 2023

,,/-f 
-/:7.



FORMNO.MGTS 
ANNEXURE I

EXTMCT OF ANNUAL RETURN

For the financial yearended on 31.03.2023

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) ofthe Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I, REGISTMTION & OTHER DETAILS:
1. CIN u65923KA2006PlC040028
2. Registration Date 24-)!t-ZOO6
3. Name ofthe Company lana Small Finance Bank Limit-d-
4_ Category/Sub-category

ofthe Company
PublicLimited Company li,"ited by stra.*

5. Address ofthe
Registered office &
contact details

The FairwayBusiness par*, * tO/t,tyZ St /28 Otf -Domlut Koramangala Inner Ring road, Nexr to EGL Business
Park Challagharta, Bengaluru - S60071

6. Whether listed company No, However, the non-convenible d entures issuedlltlre-
Company have been listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange

7. Namq Address &
contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, ifany.

KFin Technologies Limited (Earlierknown as KFin
Technologies Private Limited),
Selenium Tower B, plot No 31& 32,
Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally
Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana Srate (TS)
Ph. no.: +91 040 67161602

I], PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

III. PARTICUI-lIRS Of HOLDING, STJBSIDIARYAND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. No. Name and Description ofmain
products / services

NIC Code ofthe
Product/sewice

% to total turnover ofthe
company

1 Banking & Financial Services 64191 100%

s.

No.

NameandAddress
ofthe Company

CIN/GLN Holding

/Subsidiary/Associate
% ofshares
held

Applicable
Section

1 No!applicable
2

3



IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage ofthe total equlty)

Category-wise share holding :

lquity Shares I

No. ofShares held at theend of the yearlAs on 31

Mare,i-2022)
fr6JT$*es laa 

"t 
tt'e ena or the year[As on

31_March-20231

% Change

durint

(1) lndian

al Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corp. 22025791 0 22025791 +2.440k 23s75790 0 0 0.0404

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

22025797 0 22025791 +2.840/0 23575794 0 0 o.o4%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Bank / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

29t45t9 0 29t4St9 5.674k 3219584 0 3219584 5.86% 0.79%

s) Flh 19234095 19234095 37.470 20190434 20190434 36.721vn 0.69%)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) otheB tspeci9l 141285 0 r41285 0.27% 141285 141285 o.26V) 0.02%)

sub-toral (B)(1)r 222A9A99 0 22249499 +3.36% 23551303 23551303 42.A40A o.52Va

i) Indian 1554973 0 1554973 3.020/a 7?t9343 0 1719343 3.t3ot1 0.10%

0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00%

0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.000,6 0.00%



i) lndividual

upto Rs. 1 IakI

L3477 0 13477 0.03% 88098 0 8809a 0.16% 0.13%

ii) Individu.l 234605 0 234505 0.+60k 234605 0 2346Q3 0.431/0 -0.03%

c) othe6 (spsii,)
HUF

19995a 0 19995a 0.39ak 199958 0 199958 0.36% 0.030

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
s0928s5 0 5092855 9.9r% 5609606 5609606 t0.20% 0.30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
0 0 0 0

o

0

n
0 0 0_00%

0 0 0 0 0 0.000/6
sub rotat (B)(2):, 709586a 0 709586a 13.80% 7851610 0 7851610 \4.2{h 0.4a%

Shareholding
(B)=(BX1)+ (B)t2)

29385767 0 2934s767 57.764h 31402913 0 3t4029t3 57.t2% -0.04%

c. Sha.ls held by

&ADRs

0 0 0 0

100.00%

0 0 0 0 0.00%

Gra!d Torat(A+Blc) 51411564 0 51411564 0 5497A703 100,00% 0.00%

Compulsorily Convertible preference Shares :

Category of
Shareholders

No. ofShares held at the bednning oittrE
year[As on 31-March-2022]

No. ofShares held at the end ofthe yea4es
on 31-March-20231

%
Change
during

the
year

Demat Physic
al

Total %of
Total
Shares

Demat Physi
cal

Total th of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters
(11 Indian
a) lndividual/
HUF

b) Central cow
cl Srate covtfs)
d) Bodies Com. Nil \rl Nil \L Nrl

e) Banks / FI

fl Any other
Total
shareholding
ofPromoter
tAl

\rl :!it NLI Ntl \ii NiL \il

B. Public
Shareholdins
l.lnstitutions



al Mutual Funds

I Bank / FI

Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture
Capital Funds

0lnsurance
ComDanies

12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000
g) FIIs/ForeiSn
Companies
h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds
i) Others
fsDecifvl
sub-total

(BX1):-

12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000

2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) lndian 15,00,00,000 r5.oo,0o.0o0 I 100.00 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 55.56%

iil Overseas

bl lndividuals
i) lndividual
shareholders
holding nominal
sharecapital
upto Rs. 1 laLh
ii) lndividual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess ofRs 1

lakh
c) others
tsDecify)-HUF
Non Resident
lndians
Overseas
Corporate
Bodies
Foreign
Nationals
Clearing
Members
Trusls
Foreign Bodies -
DR
Sub-total
fB)(21:-

15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 55.560/0

Total Public
Shareholdins

15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 100.00 27,00,00,000 27,00,00,000 100.00



(B)=(BX1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for cDRs &
ADRs

100.00Grand Total
fA+B+C)

15,00,00,000 27.00.00.000 27,00,00,000 100.00

B) Shareholding of promoter-

SN Shareholde
/s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of
the vear

Shareholdingat the end ofthe
year

change
in
sharehold
ingduring
theyear

No. of
Shares

% oftotal
Shares of

the
company

ckof
Shares
Pledged

encumb
ered to
total
shares

No. of
Shares

Vo of
total

Shares
ofthe

compan

v

of
Shares
Pledged /
encumbe
red to
total
shares

1 ,ana
Holdinss
Limited

22025797 42.84 1.47 23575790 42.88 1.80 0.04

C) Change ir Promoters' Sharehotding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN Pafticulars Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
theyear

No, ofshares 96 of total
sharesofthe
company

No. ofshares % of total
shares ofthe
company

At tie beginning of the
year

22025797 42.84 22025797 42.A4

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during
the year specifying the
rcasons for increase /
decrease (e.9. allotment
/transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.):

a) 31-
May-20221
Allotment of
258115
shares

bJ 30-lun-
2022:
allotment of
461252
shares
cl 29-,ul-
20221
allotmentof
430626
shares

22283912

23145164

23575790

43.12

44_06

43.38

At the end ofthe year 23575790 42_88 23575790 42.AA



D) Shareholding Paftern oftop ten Shareholdersr

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders ofGDRS and ADRS)l

V) Shareholding ofDirectors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN For Each ofthe ToP 10

shareholders

shareholding at the

beginning
ofthe year

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the
Year

No. of
shar€s

0/6 oftotal
shares of
the
company

No. of
shares

% oftotal
shares of
the
company

At the beginning ofthe Year Refer
Attachment

Date wise lncrease / Decrease in

Promoters Shareholding during the
yearspecifying the reasons for increase

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end ofthe year

SN Shareholding ofeach Directorc and

each Key Manage al Personnel
Shareholding at the

beginning
ofthe year

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the

No. of
shares

r% oftotal
shares of
the
company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

At the beginning ofthe Year NIL

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end ofthe year



INDEBTEDNESS -lndebtedness ofthe Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.

Rupees in crores

ParticulaIs
Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Total
Indebtedn
ess

lndebtedness at the beginning oithi niliiial
year

i) PrincipalAmount 2,775.75 3,696.83 6,472.5Aiil Interestdue but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not Due 7.7 6 s4.22 61.98
Total (i+ii+iiiJ 2,743.51 3,751.05 6,534.56
Change in Indebtedness auri"g Oe nnarrcia
year

Addition 67 ,37 4.4A 10,a59.24 74,233.72. Addition - conversion from secured to

Reduction 68.215.23 9,074.61 ?7,293.A4
' Reduction - conversion fromiidred m-
unsecured

Net Change (840.7s1 1,780.63 939.88
Indebtednessat the end ofthe financialyear
i) PrincipalAmount 1,93s.00 5,477.46 7,472.46
ii] Interestduebutnotpaid
iii) Interestaccrued but not due 64_73 56.18 720.90

'Total (i+ii+iii) 1,999.73 5,533.64 7,533.36

Note : sectio_n.73 (1) of the companies Act, 2013, states that the provisions of the said Act rerating to
acceptance ofdeposits by companies do not apply to a Banking company as defined in the Reserve Ban-k of
India Act, 1934- Accordingly, informarion relating to the Bank,idepoiitshas nor bee. disclosed in the table
above. As per the applicable provisions of the Banking RegulationAct, 1949, details oithe Bank,s deposits
have been included under Schedule 3 - Deposits, in thtfin;cial statements ofthe Bank.

Debentures :

Type ofDebentures No. ofDebentures Nominal Value per
Debentures (Rs.)

Total Nominal value of
Debentures [Rs. In

crorel
Non-convertible ( for

each type)r

At the beginningoftle
year

7,110 3,300 units at FV
2,27,272.73

75

3,810 units at
FV1,000,000

381

Changes during the
yeat

flncrcase/RedemDtion)

Increase:

Redemption: 260 Redemption 260 units of
FV 10,00,000

26.00



At the end ofthe year 6,850 3,300 units at FV
2,27,272.73

75

3,550 units at
FV1,000,000

Partly-convertible ( for
each tYPe)

NA NA NA

At the beginning ofthe
year

NA NA NA

Changes during the
year

flncrease/RedemDtionl

NA NA

At the end ofthe year NA NA

Fully-convertible ( for
each tyPe)

NA NA NA

At the beginning ofthe
year

NA NA

Changes during the
year

flncrease/Convertedl

NA NA

At the end ofthe year NA NA NA

Total Amount of
Debentures

At the beginning ofthe
year

7,110 3,300 units at FV
2,27,272.73

75

Changes during the
year

fl ncrease/RedemDtion')

3,810 units at
FV1,000,000

381

Increase:

At the end ofthe year 6,850 3,300 units at FV

2,27,272.73

75

3,550 units at
FV1,000,000

355



VII. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND I(E'Y MANAGENAL PERSONNEL :

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Managei

lvo,e - Value ofthe Perquisites is not included in tle fotat arnonnt 1e1

B, Remuneration to other directors

SN Particlrlars of Remuneration Name ofMD/WTD/
Manager

Total Amount

Ajay Kanwal
(MD & cEo)

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sectionlTGl of-
the Income-tax Act, 1961 5,62,22,440 5,62,22.440

(bl Value of perquisites u/s 17(Z) tncome-tax act, tS6t.
18 82,785 18,82 785

(c) Profits in lieu of salaryunaii--ion fz1:l tncome-
tax Act, 1951

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- as 96 ofprofit
- others, sDeci&

5 Others, please speciry
CaTEMI 28,02,384 24,023A4
Employer PF Contribution 25,93,185 25 93.185
Total (A) 6,35,00,794 6,35,00,794
Ceiling as per the Act

SN Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors Total

1 Independent
Directors

Dr.

Subhash

c.

Xhuntia

Vikram
Gandhi
(upto 7-

Feb-

2023)

R
Ramases

han

Chitra
Talwar

Eugene

Kartlak
(upto 9-
Apr-2022)

KSrinivas
Nayak

P. Viiaya

I(umar
(wef 246
March
2023')

Fee for
attending
board
committee
meetings

10,50,000 1,75,000 10,75,000 10,00,000 7,75.000 s0,000 41,25.000

Commission

Others, please

speciry Gixed
pav)

15,00,000 15,00,000

Toral [1) 25,50,000 1,75,000 10,75,000 10,00,000 7,75,000 50,000 56,25,000
2 Other Non-

Executive

Directors

Ramesh

Ramanat

han

Rahul
Khosla



Fee for
attending
board

committee
meetings

2,25,000 2,25,000

Commission

Others, please

sPecifY

Total (2) 2,25,000 2,2s,000

Total

tB)=(1+2)

25,00,00

0

4,00,000 10,25,000 9,50,000 7,25,O00 50,000 56,50,000

overall Ceiling
as per the Act
tsitting fees not
to exceed
Rs.1,00,000 per
meetins)

Ttre Bank pays sittingfees to Non_Executive Directors
which isbelowthe ceiling ofRs,1,00,000/- per meetingas
prescribed under the Companies Act,2013

C. REMUNEMTION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/W,TD [+PIEASE NOtE

that the salary of CEO is already provided under section VII A and in our Bank MD holds the position of

CE0 alsol

SN Particulars of Remuneration

CEO * CFO cs Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of
the lncome-tax Act. 1961

1,45,64,082 35,62,475 181,26,557

(b) Value ofperquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Acl 1961

6,05,196 6,05.196

(c) Profits in lieu ofsalary
under section 17[3) Income'

tax Act, 1961

2 Stock 0ption

3 Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % ofprofit

others, speciry...

5 0thers, please

speciry(Employer PF

Contribution)

7,39,200 1,75,088 9,14,288

Total 1,59,08,478 37,37,563 1,96,46,041

I



VIII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Non - Executive Chairman

Date:9rh May 2023

Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Appeal made,
ifany (give
Details)

A. COMPANY . NIL

B, DIRECTORS - NIL

C OTHER OFFICERS IN DETAULT. NIL

lPu
tu

Aiay Kanwal



AttachmentA

Jana Small Flnance BankLimited
Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar-2023 and 31-Mar'2022 (Iop 10 sharcholde$ other

lhan directors, promoters, GDRs and ADRs

7 TPG Asia VI SF ftE. Ltd 50,26,499 L78 4,30,626 54.57,725 9.93

2
North Haven Private Equity
Asia Platinum fte. Ltd 4,-,47,427 8.07 47,47,427 7.54

3 Amansa Holdings Re. Ltd
31-,54,27 5 6.14 5,25,7 73 36,79,988 6.69

Harbourvest Partners Co-
lnvestment Fund lV L.P. 22,66,940 4.47 2,37,309 4_55

5 Client Rosehill Limited a7,57,755 3.42 t7,57,755 3.20

6 Alpha-IC Holdings Pte Ltd fi,44,975 3.40 77,44,975 3.18

7
Treeline Asia [raster Fund
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 76,52,707 L6,52,707 3.00

lclcl Prudential Life lnsurance
Company Ltd 11,07,639 2.75 1,44,607 12,92,246 2.35

9
Bajaj Allianz Life lnsurance
Company Ltd 10,84,128 2.1! 1,20,454 12,04,586 2.79

10
QRG lnvestments and Holdings
Limited (earlier known as QRG
Enterprises Limited)

9,86,216
a.92 7,64,370 11,50,546 2_O9

Dr. Subhash c. xltuntia
Non Execrrtive Chairman

Date r 96 May 2023

!r sharehorder .:lli:.. nlfu, I o,,o,-"n, t:' ,n,T!."tr. n"l,i'
f31-Mar- rers "il;;;dx 

";



ANN trx up.E_lE
CSR POLICY

Jana SmallFinance Bank (JSFB) strives to bea customercentric org,anization thatdetivers essentialfinancial
services at scale to various customer segments in a robust and transparent manner. Recognizing the
communities in which JSFB works and vision for positive impact, JSFB conducts its business with a strong
Double-Bottom-Line approach. This is exemplified both with routine business operations as well as the
programs JSFB sponsoE for its customeG, employees and communityat large.

JSFB's visaon for comoIate social Responsibility (csR): JSFB aspires to further its socaat and environmentat
commitment by incorporating the vision of CSR laid out bythegovernment in its Companies Act, 2013. JSFB
intends to integrate the csR guiderines in i1s brsiness operations as we, as outine a stratery to invest its
qSR monies in socially and environmentally beneficial outcomes.

The CSR Committee will be in cha€e & rende, the following functions

i. Developingthe qSR stGteA/ and operationatizing institutional mechanisms.
ii. Preparing a detailed ptan on CSR activities.

iii. Making decisions regardingthe expenditure on CSR activity.
av. l\4aking decisions on the types of activities to be undertaken.
v. Delineating roles and responsibilities ofvadous stakeholders.
vi. Ensuringthe establishment of a monitoringand evaluation mechanism

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited,s (JSFB) CSR policy intends to integrate the GSR guidetines in its business
operations as we as oufline a stratesr to invest its csR budget in sociafly and envaronmentafly beneficiar
outcomes. JSFB will, therefore, through selfdriven or panner with a diverse range ofstakeholders including
well€stablished NGOS, government bodies and community representatives for its qSR activities.

Meetings

Ouringlhe year 2022-23, two CSR Committee [4eetings were held on:

4$ August 2022 and 24b February 2023

Composruon of CSR Committee:

Name of Direcd

Naturc of
DirectoEhip

umber of meetings of
CSR Committee hetd

duringthe y€ar

Number of meetinEs of
CSR Committee

attended during $e
wat

Mrs. Chika TaMar

l\4r. Ajay Kanwal

Dr. Subhash Khuntia



Wetslink where Composition of CSR committee, CSR poticy and CSR projects appro\€d by the Board are
discloGed on tie webGite of the Bank

Composition of CSR committee httos://www.ianabankcomZ6ouEus-7teEE

governance/committeeslf-board/

CSR Policy httos://www.ianabankffi
CSR projects apprw-o by tre Board nttos://www.tanaoanK.com/imaqes/pDFlCSR oroiects_for_the

uear2o22-23.odt

Details of lmpact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance ofsuurule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Sociat

responsibility Policy) Rutes, 2014, if appticable (attach the report)

Details of the amount available fo. set off in pursuance of sub_rule (3)

of rule 7 of the Companies (Co.porate Social responsibility policy)

Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if
any

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

CSR details:

.NA

Rs. 43,54,53,354.17

^ 
CSR amount soent or unsoent for the financial vear:

Oetails of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the _ Annexure A
financialyear

Amountspent in Administrative Overheads , NtL

Amount spent on lmpact Assessment, ifapplicable - NA

Totalamount spent for the Financialyear

Two percent of average n@ Rs. 87,09.06rc8
Surptus aris

financialyears.

Amount required to EeEet 6F67SETiEE Eii
Total CSR obtigation foithe financialyear Rs.87,09.067.08

TotalAmount

Spent for the

Financial

Year.(ln Rs.)

Amount LJnspent

Total Amount tra nsferredio-

Unspent CSR Account as pet

section 135(6).

Amount transferred to ani fu ndEEEFEdIiEEi
Schedule Vllas per second proviso to section

135(5).

Amount Date of

transfer

Name of the

fund

Amount Date of transfer

Not Applicable

or UJK amount spent agatnst ng projects for the n alvear - NA





Mooe or moementaron

- Ih.ou8h implehenting

1

2

3 9,23.2T4

4.26.000

5 19 42.930

6 3,71,290

35 360

I 134,000

9 4.49.980

10 Golaghat 1,74,300

11.



Chhattisgam

Durg 9.97,100

13.

chief
4,01200

5,00,000



ANNEXURE. III

roRru No. Aoc.2

Form for discrosure of particxlars of contracts/arrangements entened into by the company v/ith reratedparties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies AcL 2b13 including certain arm,s
length transactions under third proviso therero.

(Putsuont to clause (h) of sub.section (3) oI section 134 of the Act ond Rute S(2) of the
Companies (Accoults) Rutei ZO14)

l Details of contracts or arangements or transactions not at arm's rength uasis r A, Rerated party
Transactions are at arm's length.

2. Details ofmaterial contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm.s length basis: NIL

(bl

(c)

(d)

(e)

(fl

(D

G]

Dr. Subhash C. Nhuntia
Non Executive Chairman

Date : 9th May 2023

Name(s) ofthe related partyand nature of rerationship : Iana urban Foundation and Mr. Ramesh
Ramanatlar! Director of the Board is also a Director & Chairman in that Company.

Nafure ofcontracts/arrangements/transactions : Trademark Licence Agreement

Duration of tie contracts/arrangements/transactions : perpetuity, effective from 1-Nov_2019

salient terms of the contracts or ar.rangements or transactions including the value, ifany:

The licence agreement is for usageof"r" Logo and word "JANA" by the Bankwhich is owned byJan
Urtan Foundation

Date(s) ofapproval by the Board, ifany: 24tr, October 2019

Amount paid as advances, ifany: Nil

MD &CEO



ANNEXURE - IV

(i) Tt" .rtto of the remuneration of
each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial Year;

t'.tOaCEO - O,:S,OO,ze+7Z,OO,ooO

All Employee Median ( 2,60,000) - Median amountof
annualised Fixed pav for allemployees

1i-ij Tl," p".."ntrg" increase in
remuneration of each director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive
omcer, company Secretary or
Manager, ifany, in the financial Yea!

MD&CEO. ( '11%) - fhe in.rease in costvis-e-vis previous

year is on accountofbonus amountpaid in this FY (i e.

Apl22 &Ma/23) basis the approval from RBI

CS: ( 14.9%l- increase in cost due to increment &bonus
paid.

CFO: ( 8%l - increase in cost due to increment&bonus
Daid.

aii) The percentage increase in the
median remuneration of employees in
the financiat vear;

(260000'2452A6) / 2452a6= 6oh)

(ivl The number of Permanent
emolov€es on the rolls of comDany;

18J84 (as on 3lst March 20231

(v) Average percentile increase already
made in thesalaries of employeesother
than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its companson
with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and

iustification thereof and point out if
there are any excePtional
circumstances for increase in the
manaserial remuneration;

-1an" 

sm"llFi*n.u Bank compensation poliry has a target
for compensation bedchmarking at median or above for
emPIoyees.

(vi) Aflirmation that the remuneration
is as per the remuneration policy ofthe
comDany.

STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY:

Particulars of employees rremuneration, as required under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act' 2013' read

with Rule 5(2) and 5i3) oftheCompanies (Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial PersonnelJ Rules'

zo fl, formi aiart oithis report. Considering hrst proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act 2013' the

annual Repori, excluding the said information, was sent to the members ofthe Bank and others entitled

thereto. T;e said inform;fion is available for inspection at the registered offfce ofthe Bank during working

hor.. up to the date of ensuing annual genaral meeting. Any member interested in obtaining such

informaiion may write to the CompanySecretaryin this regard. The said information is also available on the

website ofthe Bank at ww.\,\,.janabank.com

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Non Executive Chairman

Date:9th May 2023

MD & CEO



ANNEXURE - V

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Bank is cornmitted to ensure high standards of transparency and accountabirity in a, its aclivities. Best
management pradices and hi8h levels of integrity in decision making are diligently followed to ensure
sustained wealth generation and creation ofr,?lueforall stakeholders. The Bank;dhe;es .o all principles of
corporate govemance in its true spiritatall times.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board consists of 8 dir€rctors as on 31e March 2023. All independent directors possess requisite
qualifications and are very experienced in their respective fierds. Nece;sary disclosures have been obtained
from all directors regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board. Noneofthenon-
executive dinectors hasany material pecuniary relationship ortransactions with the Company.

The names ofthe directors and the details ofothercommittee membership ofeach Directoras on 31n March
2023 is given below:

Board Meedngs and AttendaDce at Board Meetings

The Board met9 times during the financiaryear 2022-23 and the gap between two meetinSs did not exceed
one hundred and twenty days, as perthe provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

The dates for the board meetings are fixed after taking into account the convenience ofal directors and
sumcient notice is given to them. Detailed agenda notes are sent to the directoN. All informatio[ required
fordecision makingare incorporated in the agenda. Thosethat cannot be incruded in the agencla are tabled
at the meeting The Managing Director & cEo appraises the Board on the overall peformance of the Bank
at every board meeting. The Board reviews performance, approves capital expenditures, sets the stratery of
the Bank eDd ensures financial stab ity. The Board takes on record the actions taken by the Bank on aI its
decisions periodically.

Attendance ofeach Dirertor et Board Meetings

S.No Name No. of Board
Meetingsheld

No. ofBoard
Meetings attended

1 Dr. Subhash C Khuntia 6 6

2 Aiay Kanwal 6 6

3 Ramesh Ramanathan 6 6

Vikram candhi* 5 2

5 R. Ramaseshan 6 6

6 Chitra Talwar 6 5

7 Elgene Karthak** 0 0



I RahulKhosla 6

9 K. Srinivas Nayak 6

10 P. viiaF Kumar*** 1 I

*Conptetea nis 1* o7 term with effect rroh 7t^ Februory 2023
**Resigned with eJIect Iron 96 Aptil 2022
*"Director v/ith effect from 24d March 2023

Attendance of each Director at Board Meetirgs (at shorter notice) :

S,NO Name
No. of Board

Meetings held

No. of Board

Meeti ngs attended

1 Dr. Subhash C Khuntia 4

2 Ajay Kanwal 4

3 Ramesh Ramanathan 4 3

4 Vikram Gandhi* 4 1

5 R. Ramaseshan 4

6 Chitra Talwar 4 4

7 Eugene Karthak *' 0 0

I Rahul Khosla 4 2

9 K Srinivas Nayak 4 3

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMMTEE

The committee assiststhe board in thedissemination offinancial information and in overseeing the financial

and accounting processes in the Bank. The terms ofreference of the committee covers all matters specified

insectionlTTofthecornpaniesAct,2013andasrequiredbytheReserveBankoflndia.Thetermsof
reference broadly include review of internal audit rePorts and action taken reports, assessment of the

emcacy of the internal control systems/ financial reporting systems and reviewing the adequacy of the

financial policies and practices followed by the Bank. The Committee reviews compliance with legal and

statutory requirements, quarterl, half yearly and annual financial statements and related party

transactions and reports its findings to the Board. The committee also recommends appointment of the

internal auditor and the statutory auditor. The committee also looks into those matters specifically referred

to it by the Board.

The Audit & Compliance committee met I (Ei8ht) times during the financial year, on 16d May 2022a 176

May 20 2 2; on 4th August 2O22t 1tn Avg|dst ZO22i 9d November 2022; 1Os November 2022; 66 February 20 23

and 7s February 2023.

Statutory auditors were present at the audit committee meetings held on l7h May 2022:, 5i Anglust 2022i

lOt November 2022 and 7n'February 2023.



TheCommittee comprised the following d irectors for the year ended 31$ March 20231

Mr. K Srinivas Nayak (Committee Chairman)
Mr. R. P.amaseshan
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan
Mr. Vikram candhi
Mr. Rahul Khosla
Mrs. Chitra Talwar

The termJ of reference ofthe Committee:

The Committee is govemed by tle terms of reference specified by Companies Act 2013, RBI circulars issued
from timeto time & the regurations of SEBI (Listing obrigations and Di;crosure Requirements) Regurations,
2015.

The Bank has adopted the terms of reference for the committee from the three regurators which are risted
asAnnexure l,ll and lll to this Charter.

Annexure I

(A) As per the pmvision ofsection 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee shall act in accordance
with the terms of reference specified in writing by the Board which shall inter alia, include

(i) the recommendation for appointmenL remunention and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;
(ii) review and monitor the auditols independence and pedorrnancq and effectiveness ofaudit process;
(iii) examination of the financial statementand the auditoN, report thereonj
(iv) approval or any subsequent modifiaation ofEansactions of tle companywith related parries;
(v) scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments;
(vi) valuation ofundenakings or assets ofthe compan, wherever it is necessary;
(vii] evaluation ofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;
(viii) monitoring tbe end use offunds raised through public offers and related matters.

The committee may call for the comments of the auditors about intemarcontror systems, the scope ofaudiL
including the observations of the auditors and review offinanciar statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the intemal and statutoryauditors and the management
of the company.

The committee shall have authorityto investiSate into any matter in relation to the items specified in sub-
section (4) ofSection 177 ofthe Companies AcL 2013 or referTed to it by rhe Boad and for this purpose
shall have power to obtaio professional advice from external sources and have full access to information
contained in the records of the company.

Annexure II

(BJ Tems of Reference as per RBI Circularissued from time to time areas below:

Quarterly
Exposure to sensitive sectors i.e. capital market & real estate.



l(YC / AML Guidelines - (i) Review ofimplementation (ii) Review ofcompliance ofconcurrent audit

reports with respect to adherenaeto KYC / AML guidelines atbranches'

Review of housekeeping _ particularly balancing and reconciliation of long outstanding entries

suspense / Sundries/ Dratu payable / paid / Funds in Transit / Clearing / SGL / csGL accounts

Review oflcompliance in respect ofthe Annual Financial Inspection conducted by RBI and any other

inspection conducted by any regulators (ACB should review this on ongoing basis till the bank

furnishes full compliance. ACB should closely monitor persisting deficiencies pointed out in RBI

Inspection Reports )
ReviewofAudit plan and status ofachievement thereol
Review of significant Audit Findings of the following audits along with the compliance thereof - (i)

LFAR (ii) Concurrent Audit (iii) Internal Inspectiou (iv) I S. Audit of Data Centre (v) Treasury and

Derivatives (vi) Management Audit at controlling oflices / Head offices (vii] Audit of service

Branches (viii) Currency Chest (ix) FEMA Audit ofbranches authorized to deal in foreign exchange'

Compliance report on directives issued byACB / Board / RBI.

Report on compliance ofclause 49 and other guidelines issued by SEBI from time to time'

Report on compliance of regulatory requirement of Regulators in Host Countries in respect of

overseas branches,

Review of Frauds (frauds ofRs.1 crore and above to be reviewed as and when reported)'

Review of financial results for the quarter

Review ofinformation onviolations byvarious functionaries in the exerciseofdiscretionarypowers'

Information in respect ofequity share holdings in borrower companies more than 30% oftheir paid

up capital.

Review FirstYear Audit Committee minutes and give recommendations.

HalfYearly
- Status of implementation ofGhosh and lilani Committee reports

Detailed report on fraudulent transactions relating to Internet Banking through phishing attacks

pointing out in particular the deficiencies in the existing s,stems and steps taken by the lT

department to prevent such cases

Annual
- Change in accounting policy and practices which may have significant bearing on financial

statements, A confirmation that accounting policies are in compliance with accounting standards

and RBI guidelines.
- Review oflS Audit Policy
' Review oftransactions with related parties

- Review ofaccounting policies / systems ofthe bank with a view to ensuring Sreatertransparency in

the bank's accounts and adequacy ofaccountin8 standards.

- Review of adequacy of the internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit

department, stafling and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,

covera8e and frequency ofinternal audit.
- Review ofthe bank's financial and risk management policies.

Review ofannual accounts ofthe bank.

- Appointment of statutory auditors and review of performance _ both for domestic and overseas

operations.
- Penalties imposed / penal action taken against bank under various laws and statutes and action

taken for corrective measures



- Review of report on Revenue leakage detected by Internal / External Auditors and status of recovery
thereof- reasons for undercharges and steps taken to prevent revenue leakage.

Annexure III

(C) AsIer the regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 1S, the
role of the Audit Committee and review ofinformation byAudit Comhittee ls as rrjer,

(1) oversight of the Bank's financial rcporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sumcient and credible;
(2) recommendation forappointment remuneration and terms ofappointment ofauditors ofthe Bank;
(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
(4) reviewin& with the managemenL the annual financial statements and auditor,s repon thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
a) matters required to be included in the directo/s responsibility statement to be included in the board,s
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 ofthe CompaniesAcL 2013;
b) changet ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for th; same;
c) major accounting enFies involving estimates based on the exercise ofjudgment by managemenc
d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of arait nnUing";
e) compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
0 disclosure ofany related party transactions;
g) modified opinion(s) in the draftauditrepor!
(5) reviewin& with the rhanagemenl the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;
(6) reviewin& with the managehent, the statement of uses / application offuods raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement offunds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation ofproceeds of a public or rights issue,and making appropdate recommendations
to the board to take up sleps in tlis maner;
(7) reviewing and monitoring the audito/s independence and performance, and efrectiveness of audit
process;

(8J approval or any subsequent modification oftransactions ofthe Bank with rerated partiesi
(9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(101 valuation of undertakings or assets ofthe Bank wherever it is necessary;
(11) evaluation of intemal financial controlsand risk management systems;
(12) reviewin& with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;
(13) reviewing the adequacy of internar audit function, if an, incruding the structure of the intemal audit
departmenl stamng and seniority of the omcial heading the departmert, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of intemal audit;
(14) discussion with intemal auditors ofany significant findings and follow up there on;
(15J reviewing the findings ofany intemal investigations bythe internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a fairure ofinternar contror systems ofa materiar nature and reporting
the matter to the board;
(161discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, aboutthe nature and scope ofaudit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
(17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case ofnon parrment ofdeclared dividends) and creditors;



[18) periodic i nspection report submitted by the RBI and Certificates/returns/reports to the RBI pertaining

to the Audit Committee function
(19) annual Tax Audit statement and auditors neportthereon

(20) to review the functioning ofthe whistle blower mechanism;

iztl approval of appointment of chief financial omcer after assessing the qualifications' experience and

background, etc. ofthe candidate;

(22) io ensurethatan Infonnation System Auditofthe internal systemsand processes is conducted atleast

once in two years to assess operational risks faced by the Bank'

(23) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference ofthe audit committee

The Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

[1) management discussion and analysis offinancial condition and results ofoperations;

(2) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the committee), submitted by

management;

[3) management letters / letters ofinternal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditorsi

(4) intemal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

[5)theappointment,removalandtermsofremunerationoftheinternalauditorshallbesubiecttoreview
by the committee.
(6)statementofdeviationsasandwhenbecomesapplicable|{NeedtoreviewoncetheBankgetlisted)

[a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable submitted to

stock exchange(sl in terms ofRegulation 32(1) ofSEBI (LoDR) Regulations, 2015

O) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer

document/prospectus/noticein terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Compliance Charter for the Audit and Compliance Committee ofthe Board (ACB)

sl. No Particulars Frequency

I ieporton compliancebreaches/failures,if any Quarterly, Annually

2 Review ofthe annual compliance risk assessment Annually

3 R*,i"* .f th"it"pt**"tation of KYC_AML Suidelines Quarterly

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATTON COMMITTEE

Th€ Commiftee comprised the following Dir€ctors fortheyearended 31st March 2023:

Mr. R. P.amaseshan (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Prmesh Ramanathan
Ms. Chitra Talwar
Mr. Eugene Karthak
Mr. Rahul Khosla

The Committee met 6 (Six) times in the financial year, on 16s May 2022; 4tr August 2022; 5s August 2022j

gr Notembet 2022;27* December 2022 and 6d' February 2023

The tems ofreference ofthe Commlttee shall, tnter alia, include

a. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, compliance with the fit and proper criteria
as required underthe Reserve Bank oflndia Guidelines for Licensing ofSmaU Finance Banks in the

Privaie Sector, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of



directors a policy, relatingto the remuneration ofthe directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that
the level and compositionofremuneration be reasonable and sumcient to attracL retain directorsrelationship of remuneration ro performance is clear and .";;;;.;;;;;;._**
benchmark; and
remuneration to 

-directors, 
key managerial personnel and material risk indicators involves aoarance Detween tixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance obiectivesarpro-priate ro the working of rhe Bank and its goals and in accorjance ri,r, u*orlgria"ur". orthe RBI

b Formurating criteria for evaruation of p€rformance of independent directors and the Board ofDirectors;
c. To ensure lltand prope/status of proposed/existing Directors;o. Devrsrng a policyon diversity ofBoard ofDirectors;
e. ldentirying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in seniormanagement in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend io the tsoard of directorstheirappointment and removal and shall speciry the manner for effective evaluation ofperformance

of the Board, its comminees and individu;t diiectors to be carried or.rt eitleity ttre Iioara, Uy tleNomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent externai agency and review itsimplementation and compliance. The Bank sha, d_iscrose the remuneration poiicy ano tte evaluation
criteria in its annual reporb

f. Extending or continuing the term ofappointment of the independent director, on the basis of thereport of performance evaluation of independent directors;
& Recommending to tle board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to whole time directors

and material risk bkers.
h. Administerin& monitoring and formulating detailed terms and conditions of the Employees Stockoption Schemeof the Bank
i. Carrying out any otler function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / orenforced/lnandated byanystatutorynotification, amendment ormodification, as may Oe applicabte;

j. Performing such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of itsduties.

The role ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Nomination:
- Making recommendations to the Board on the necessary and desir:ble competencies ofdirectors to

ensure that the Board has an appropriate mix ofskills, experience, expertis; and diversityto enable
itto discharge its responsibilities and deliver the Company's corporate oblectives;- At the request of the Board, making recommendations for tie appointment and re-election of
directors;

- Prior to recohmending a candidate for appointment to the Board, undertaking check as to a
candidate's character, experience, education, criminal record and bankruptcy h istory and any other
check it considers appropdate;

- Establishing and, at the request of the Board, reviewing induction programmes for new directors
and continuing education programmes for all directors in orderto allow new directors to participate
fullyand actively in Board decision-making at the earliest opportunity, and to enable new directors
to gain an understanding oe - the industry within which the Company operatesj _ the Company,s
financial, strategic, operational and risk management position; - the culture ano varues of the
company; ' the rights, duties and responsibilities of the directors, - the rores and responsibilities of

(D
(iD

(iiD



the Company's senior managenent and its subsidiaries; _ the role of the Committeesi _ meeting

arranSementsjand.directorinteractionwitheachother,seniorexecutivesandotherstakeholders;
- Regullrly reviewingthe time commitment required from a non-executive directorand whether non_

executive directors are meeting this requiremeng

- Evaluating the performance ofthe Board, its Committees and directors in line with the processes

approved bythe Board from time to time;

- Owetoping, lmplementing and reviewing the Company's succession plans for membership of the

Bo".d io en.ure, ' an appropriate balance of skills, experience expertise and diversity; and _ an

appropriate structureand composition of the Boardi

- En;uring that all non'executive directors: _ specifically acknowledge to the Company priorto being

submitted for election or re-election that they will have sumcient time to meet what is expected of

them; and inform the Chairman of the Company and the Committee before accepting any new

appointments as directors ofother companies; and

- Making recommendations to the Board in respect ofthe membership and chairmanship ofthe Audit

& Compliance Committeeand Risk Management Committee

Remuneration:
- Determining and agreeing with the Board a framework or broad policy for the remuneration ofthe

Managing Directorand such other senior executives as it is designated by the Board to consider' No

individual shall be directly involved in deciding his orherown remuneration;

- In determining such policy, taking into account all factors which it deems necessary' The objective

of such policy shall be to ensure that senior executives of the Company are motivated to pursue the

long-term growth and success of t}|e Company within an appropriate control fram€work and that

there isa clear relationship beBveen seniorexecutive performance and remuneration;

- Withinthe terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual remuneration packageofeach

seniorexecutive ensuringan appropriate balance beween fixed and incentive pay includinS' where

appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments and shares or share options to reflect the short and long_

term performance obiectives appropriate to the Company's circumstances and goals;

- Determining the Company's recruitment, retention and termination policies and procedures for

senior executives;

- Determining the policy for any incentive schemes to be operated by the Company and asking the

Board, when appropriate, to seek shareholder approval for such schemes The terms of any equity

basedremunerationschemesshallprohibitenteringintotransactionsorarrangementswhichlimit
the economic risk of participating in unvested entitlements underthese schemes;

- Determiningthe policy for superannuation arrangements for the Company's employees;

- Determinin! a framework orbroad policy for the remuneration ofthe non-execurive directors ofthe

company;
- Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the remuneration ofdirectors, senior executives and all

employees ofthe company based on gender; and

- Reviewing and approving the corporate govemance section ofthe Company's annual report'

Diversity:
- Ensuring that all decisions, frameworks and policies regarding nomination and remuneration are

made giving regard to the Company's objectives in respect ofpromohng and maintaining diversity

throughout the Companyand on the Board;

- Reviewing, developing and making recommendations to the Board and, in particular' establishing

measurable obiectives to promote and maintain diversity throughout the Company and on the

Board, and



- On at least an annual basis. reviewing and reportint to the Board on: - the Company,s protress
against the measurable objectives set bythe Board forachieving greatergender diversity and _ the
company's compliance with the Diversity poricy, and where necls-sary, ma'king recommenaations tothe Board on any changes to the Diversity policy or the measurable Jlective; for achieving Ereatergender diversity.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

As on 31i March 2023, the composition ofthe Risk Management committee was as follows:

Mr. Ajay lGnwal
Mr. R. Ramaseshan
Mr. Rahul Khosla
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Mr K Srinivas Nayak

The Committee met 4 [Four) times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meetin8 were 12d, May
2021, Td,Seprember 2021, 11d'November 2021 and 86 February 2022.

Telms of reference of the Committee:

l:j.^:TII,S: llt l:ll wi.'tle qgven:d bI rhe terms ofrererenceas specif.ied by sEat LoDR Resurarionsano apprcabte provtsions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (As amended), applicable RBI gu"idelines/circulars/ notificarions issued from time ro rime and any othei appricariu ii*-Ii ln'r.t*"nt ro. ttu ti.,"being in force and issued by Board from time to time.

a. To ensure thatall the currentand future material risk exposures ofthe Bankare assessed, identilied,
. quantified, appropriately mitigated and managed;
b. To establish a framework for the risk manage-ment process and to ensure its implementation in theBank;
c. To ensure that the Bank is taking appropriate measures to achieve prudenr balance betlveen riskand reward in bolh ongoing and new business activitiesjd. Reyiewand recommend changes, from timetotime,to dle fusk Management plan and/ orassociatedframework, processes and practices of the Bank;
e. To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicablq through the adoption ofbest practices;
I Perform otheractivities related to this charteras requested by the Board ofDirectors or to acrdress

issu€s related to any significant sub,ect within is rerm ofrefeience.g. Evaluate overall risks faced by the bank and determining the level ;frisks which will be in the bestinterest of the bank
Identiry, monitorand measure the risk profile ofthe bank.

:^:::9tl-$,,:: :19. 
procedures, verify the modets thar are used ror pricins comprex producrs.

revrew tne nsk modetsas development takes place in tle markets and also ide;trfy n;w risks.ueslgn str€ss scenarios to measure tle impact ofunusual market conditions and;onitor variance
Detween the actuat volatility ofportfolio value and tlat pred icted by the risk measures.
Monitor compliance ofvarious risk parameters by opuritirg O"p",i."rt
Review tl|e outsourcing functions ofthe Bank
Review_of risk management practices, procedures and systems to ensure that same are adequate to
Il1-1ll |:fTol risks, faced by the-bank to prudlnt levels lnnnu"rry;.lilr. 

-r,r","g"lnunt
rramework to be reyiewed foradequacy),
Limit Managehent Framework to be defined by outliningofthe tolemnce limits. Any exceptions andbreaches to be reported on a quarterly basis.

h.

i.

j.

k.
l.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

As on 31n March 2023, the Composition ofthe corporate social Responsibility committee was as follows:

Mrs. Chitra Talwar_ Committee Chairman

Dr. subhash C, Khuntia

Mr. Ajay Kanwal

Mr. Rahul Khosla

The Committee did met 2 (two) times during theyearunderreviewThe dates ofthe meetingwere4$ August

ZOZ2 and 246 Febt\ary 2023.

The terms of reference of the committee lnclude:

d.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE:

As on 31* March 2023, the composition ofthe Information Technology strategy committee was as follows:

Ms, Chitra Talwar (Committee Chairman)

Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia
Mr.A,ay Kanwal

Mr. R. Ramaseshan

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review The dates ofthe meeting were 16th May

2O2Z;46 1rrlnst 2O22i 9d November 2022 and 76 February 2023

Terms ofreference:

The Committee is governed bythe terms of reference asspecilied by RBI circulars issued from time to

time,

1. To approve lT strategy and polirydocuments
2. To ensure thatmanagement has an effective strategic Planning pmcess

3. To ensure that lTstrategy is aliSned with business strateg/

Formulation ofa corporate social responsibility policy to the Board, indicating the-activities to be

,na"*f"n Uv ,ft" sink in areas or;ubject specified in the companies Ac! 2013 The activities

should be witilin the list ofpermitted activities specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules

thereunderi
n"coarn"nding th" aaount ofexpenditure to be incurred, amount to be at least 2% ofthe average

net profit ofthe Bank in the three immediately preceding financial years; 
-

inrtitrting , transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the corporate social

resrronsibiliw oroiects or progra m mes or activities undertaken by the Bank;

tutonitoring ile cotpoote .oii"l responsibility policy from time to time and issuing necessary

ai*.tlo"a""t required for proper implementation and timely completion of corporate social

responsibility Programmes;
iJ"'",ifvi.ili.p"ri" *ciai responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy

programmes;
iaeitirylng ana 

"ppoirting 
the corporate social responsibility team of the Bank including corporate

social responsibility managet wherever required; and
p".i"..iig tt"rt other ai-rtles and functions as the Board may require the corporate social

r"ap"rtiUi"fity ."a.itt"e to undertake to promote the corporate social responsibililv activities of

the Bank."

b.



4. To ensure that investments in lnformation Technology represent a balance ofrisk and benefits for
sustaining Banl(s growth and within tle acceptable budgel
5 To mon-itor IT resources required to achieve strategic goars and provide highrevel direction forsourcing
and use oflT resources.
6 To oversee im plementation of p rocesses and practices and ensuri ng that maximum value is delivered tobusiness

i;l:^Xl:: *:ll:-llicalproiecrs have a-componenr for.project risk managemenC from tr perspective
lDy oeflnrng pnolect success measures and rollowing up progress on IT proiecls),
8. To dellne and ensure eff€,ctive imnlompntation ofstandaris oftf CoJernancel Buslness Continulty andDa!a Governance.
9 To ensure that there is an appropriate fmmework of information security risk assessment within theBank

CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE :

As on 31"t March 2023, thecomposition ofthe Customerservice Committeewas as follows:

Ms. Chitra Talwar (Committee Chairman)
Dr. Subhash C. Khuntie
Mr Aiay Kanwal

The Committee met 4 (FourJ times during the year under review. The dates ofthe meetingwere 16th May
2022;4r" A\lBust 2022i 96 November 2022 and Zr, February 2023.

The terms of reference ofthe Customerservice Committee include:

To review the level ofcustomerservice in the Bank including customercomplaints and the nature of
thefuresolution;
To provide guidance in improving the level ofcustomer service;
To ensure that the Bank provides and continues to provide best_in-class services across all its
category of customers to help the Bank in protectingand growing its brand equityj
To formulate a comprehensive Deposit policy incorporating issues such as death ofa depositor for
operations of his/her accounts, annual survey ofdepositor satisfaction, product approval process
and triennial audit of orstomer services;
To oversee the functioning of the internal committee for customer service;
To evolve innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the
overall satisfaction level of customem.

7) To ensure implementation of directives received from RBI witl respect to rendering of services to
Bank customers

The key roles & responsibilities of the Committeeare provided below:

1. Approving the various policies that relate to customer servicej examples tiereof include and are not
limited to:

. ComprehensiveDepositpolicy

. Cheque Collection policy

. Customer Compensation policy

. Customer Grievance Redressal policy
2 Reviewing metrics and indicators that provide information on the state of customer service in the Bankj
providing direction to the management ofthe Bank on actions to be taken to improve the metrics;

1)

4)

2)

3)

s)
6l



3. Reviewing the actions taken/ being taken bythe Bank to standardize the delivery ofcustomer experience

across all branches;

4. Reviewing results ofthe surveys conducted that provide quantitative and qualitative information on the

state of customer experience;

5. Providing inputs on the products introduced by the Bank with a view to ensure suitability and

appropriateness;
6. Mo;itoring the implementation of the Banking Ombudsman Scheme with particular reference to:

.Reviewin8alltheawardsagainsttheBankwithafocusonidentifyinsissuesofsystemicdeficienciesand
the Bank's plan to address these deficiencies;
. Reviewing all awards that remain unimplemented after 3 months from the date of the award with the

reasons th;reofj to report to the Board such delays in implementatron without valid reasons and for

initiating remedial action;

7'Review,onanoverallbasis,thecustomerserviceaspectsintheBankonthebasisofthedetailed
memorandum submitted in this regaad and report to the Board of Directors thereafter; this is done once

everysix monthsand based on the review, the committee will direct the Bankto initiate prompt corrective

action whereverservice quality / skills Saps have been noticed;

8. Monitoring the activities ofthe standing committee on customer service (executive level committee) on

a quarterly basis;

COMMITTEE FOR MONITORJNG UIRGE VALUE FRAUDS

As on 31i March 2023, the composition ofthe committee for Monitoring Large value Frauds was as follows:

Dr. Subhash Khuntia (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Aiay Kanwal

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan

Mr, R Ramaseshan

Ms. Chitra Talwar

The Committeedid not meet during the year under review

The terms ofrefercnce ofthe Committee are as unden

a.ldentiry the systemic lacunae, if any, that facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures

to plug the same;

b. identiry the reasons for delay in detection, ifanv, reporting to top management ofthe Bank and RBI:

c. Monitor progress of CBI / Police lnvestigation and recovery position;

d. Ensure that staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and staffside action, if
required, is completed quicklywithout loss oftime;
e. Review the efficacy ofthe remedial action taken to prevent necurrence of frauds, such as strengthening of

internal controls:
f, Put in place other measures as may be considered relevant to strengthen detective and preventive

measures against frauds;

CREDIT COMMITTEE

As on 31$ March 2023,the aomposition of the Credit Committee was as follows:

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan (Committee Chairmanl



Ms. Chitra Talwar

The Committee met 3 [Three) times during the year under review. The dates of the meeting were 1Gd, May
2022.,46 Au1Jrst2022 and 9r" November 2022.

The terms ofreference ofthe Committee are as under:

1) Review credits approved by tle Credit Approval Committee of the Bank under its authority
2) Approve credits beyond the authorityofthe CreditApproval Committee ofthe Bank.

WILLFUL DEFAULTERS COMMITTEE

As on 31n March 2023, the composition ofthe Willful Defaukers Committee was as follows:

Mr. Aiay Kanwal - Committee Chairman
Mr. R. Ramaseshan

Ms. Chitra Talwar

The Committee did not met during the year under review.

The terms of refercnce of the Committee are a, unden

The committee ofthe Bankwilr be governed by the terms of reference as specified by RBI circular issued
lrom Lrme to time and issued by Board from time to time,

To review the orderofthe executive revel committee that identifies accouots to be reported as willful defaultto cornply with the regulatory guidelines. The order shall become final only afte; it is contirmed by the
Review Committee.

IPO COMMITTEE

As on 31n March 2023, the composition ofthe IpO Committee was as follows:

Mr. Rahul Khosla - Committee Chairman
Dr. Subhash C. Khunria
Mr. Aiay IGnwal
Mr, Ramesh P.amanathan

The Committee did not met during the year under review.

The terms ofreferelce ofthe Committee are as under.:

b.

To make applications, seek clarifications, obtain approvals and seek exemptions from, where necessary,
the RBI, SEBI, the relevant registrar of companieJ ind any other govern;ental or s;tutory authorities
as may be required in connection with the offer and accept on be-half of the Board such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of then while granting such approval,
permissionsand sanctions as may be required and wherever necessary, incorp-orate sich modifiiations/
amendmentsas may be required in the draft red herring prospectus, ihe red iterring prospectus and theprospectus as applicable;
To finalize, setde, approve, adopt and file in consulEtion with the BRLMS where applicable, the DRHp,the RHP, the Prospectuq the preliminary and final international *."p 

"nj'"ny amendments,
$ipplements, notices, addenda orcorrigenda thereto, and take all such actions as may Le necessary fortie submission and filing of these documents including incorporating such alterations/ correcti;ns/



d.

i.

I,

c.

h.

i.
k.

modifications as may be required by SEBI, the RoC or any other relevant governmental and statutoly

authonties or in accordance with Applicable Laws;

TodecideinconsultationwiththeBRLMSont}eacfualoffersize,timin&pricing,discounLreservation
,nd rll th" t".., and conditions of the Offer, including the price band (including offer price for anchor

inveiiorsl, tia perioa, offer priae, and to do all such acts and things as may be necessary and expedient

for, ana inciaentat and aniillary to the Offer including to make any amendments' modifications'

variations oralterations in relation to the Offeri
To appoint and enter into and terminate arrangements with the BRLMS, underwriters to the offer'

.u,d.icate members to the offer, brokers to the offer, escrow collection bankers to the offer, refund

f'-t".. to ttr" offer, registrars, public offer account bank, sponsor bank, advertising agency' legal

advisors, auditors, and any other agencies or persons or intermediades to the off€r' including any

successors or replacementa thereof, and to negotiate, finaliseand amend the terms oftheirappointment'

incl'rdingbutnotli.it"dtotheexecutionofthemandateletterwiththeBRLMSandnegotiation,
finalization, execution and, ifrequired, amendment of the offer agreement with the BRLMs;

To negotiate, finalise and settle ind to execute and deliver orarrange the delivery ofthe DRHP' the RHP'

the P"rospectus, offer agreemenL syndicate agreement, underwriting ,agreemenL share escrow

agreemert, cash esc.o,, 
";a""-"nt, "g.""a"nta 

with the registrar to the offer and all other documents'

died, agreementsand init-ment. *h"tso"u"rwith the registrarto the offer,legal advisors, audirors,

stock exlhange [s], BRt-Ms and any other agencies/ intermediaries in connectionwith the offer with the

po*". to 
"utf,o.ii" 

on" or more officers of the Bank to execute all or any of the aforesaid docum€nts or

anyamendments thereto as maybe required ordesirable in relation to the Offer;

To seek ifrequired, the consentand/ or waiver of the lenders ofthe Bank, customers, parties with whom

the Bank has entered into various commercial and other agreements, all concemed govemment and

regulatory authorities in India or outside lndia, and any other consents and/ or waivers that may be

required in relation to the Offer or any actions connected therewith;
To open and operate bank accounts in terms ofthe escrow agreement and to authorize one or more

officers ofthe Iiank to execute all documents/ deeds as maybe necessary in this regard;

To open and operate bankaccounts ofthe Bank in terms of Section 4O(3) ofthe CompaniesAct 2013' as

amended, andio authorize one or more omcers of tle Bank to execute all documents/ deeds as may be

necessary in this regard;
To authorize and ipprove incurring of expenditure and payment of fees, commissions, brokerage'

remuneration and reimbursement ofexpenses in connection with the offerj
To accept and appropriate the proceeds of the Ofler in accordance with the Applicable Laws:

fo apprwe code of conduct as may be considered necessary by the IPO Committeeor as required under

applicable laws, regulations or Suidelines for the Board, omcers of the Bank and other employees ofthe

Banki
To approve the implementation of any corporate governance requirements. that may be considered

necesiary by the Ooard or the IPO Committee or as may be required under the applicable laws or the

SEBI tli;ti;g Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as am€nded and listing

ag..emensio be 
-entered 

into by the Bank with th€ relevant stock exchanges, to the ext€nt allowed

under lawj
To issue receipts/ allotment letters/ confirmation of allotment notes either in physical or electronic

mode representing the underlying Equity Shares in the capital of the Bank with such features and

attribute; as may be required and to provide for the tradability and free transferability thereof as per

market practicei and regulations, including listing on one or more stock exchange(s), with power to

authoriz; one or more officers ofthe Bank to sign all or any of the afore stated documents;

To authorize and approve notices, advertisements in relation to the offer in consultation with the

relevant intermediaries appointed for the Offer;
To do all such acts, deed!, matters and things and execute all such other documents, etc, as may be

deemednecessaryordesirableforsuchpurpose,includingwithoutlimitation,tofinalisethebasisof
allocation and to allot the shares to the successful allottees as permissible in law, issue of allotment

letters/ confirmation of allotment notes, share certificates in accordance with the relevant rules, in

consultation with the BRLMS;

To alo all such acts, deeds and things as Inaybe required to dematerialise the Equity Shares and to sign

and/ or modiry, as the case maybe;agreements and/ o. such other documents as maybe required with
p.



the. National Securities Depository Limited, the Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited, registrar
and transfer agents and such other agencies, authorities or bodies a; may be required in this conn;ction
and to authorize one or more ofncers ofthe Bank ro execute allor any oi the afJrestatea documents;q To make applications for risting ofthe Equity shares in one or more ioct exct rngelsl ror listing of rheEquity shares and to execute and to deriver or arrange the derivery of n".".""ry'lo.urn"rt"tio, to th"concemed stock exchange(s) in connection with obLining such iisting inciuding without limitation,entering into listing agreements and arfxing the cornrnon,uil ofth" Brn-k where necessary;r. To settie allquestions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the Offer, inctrrding such issrresor allotment, terms ofthe lpo, utirisation of the Ipo proceeds ani matters inciaentat ttrerito as rt may
deem fit;

s. To submit undertaking/ certificates or provide clarifications to the SEBI, Registrar of Companies,Kamataka at Bengaluruand the relevant siock exchange(s) where the Eqrlty3t 
"i", 

u* to t" tiat"a;t To negotiate, finalize, settre, execute and deriver any ani ill other do.u,n"rioo, in.,*-"nts and to do
or cause to be done anyand all acts or things as the Listing Committee maydeem necessary appropriate
or advisable in order to carry out the purposes and inteirt ofthis resoluiion or in connection with theurrerand any documents or instruments so executed and derivered oracts and things done orcaused to
be done by the Listing com&ittee shal be concrusive evidence ofthe authorityoiihe Listing commiftee
in so doing;

u. To delegate any of its powers set out under (aJ to (q) hereinabove, as may be deemed necessary andpermissible underApplicable Laws to the officialsofthe Bank;v. To approve suitable policies on insider tradin& whistle-blowin& risk mana8ement, and any other
policies as may be required under the SEBI Listing Regulations or;y otherApp-licabt€ Laws;w. To approve the list of 'group of companies, of the B;nk, identified pursuani io the materiality policy
adopted by the Board, for the purposes ofdisclosure in the DRHP, Rtip and prospectus;

x Decidin& negotiatingand finalisingthe pricingand aI other related matters regarding the execution of
the relevant documents with the investors in consultation with the BRLMS ;nd in accordance with
applicable laws;

y. taking on record the approval of the Selling Shareholders for offering their Equity Shares in tle Offer for
Sale;

z. to withdraw the DRHP or the RHp or to decide to not proceed wilh rhe Offer at any stage in accordance
with Applicable Laws and in consultation with rhe BRiMs; and

aa. To appoinL in consultation with the BRLMS, the registrar and other intermediaries to tre offer, in
accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Regulations and other Applicable Laws including legal
counsels, banks oragencies concemed and entering into anyagreemen; or other i nstruments for such
purpose, to remunerate all such intermediaries/ agencies including the payments of commissions,
brokerages, etc. and to terminate any agreements or arrangements wiih sucir intermediartesT agents.,,

STAKEHOLDERS R.EUITIONSHIP COMMITTEE

As on 31n March 2023, the composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was as follows:

Dr. Subhash C. (huntia (Commitree Chairman)
Mr. Ajay lGnwal
Mr. R Ramaseshan

The Committee met once during theyearunder review on 6d'February 2023.

The terms of reference ofthe Committee are as under:

Terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall include the following:

a. To resolve the grier,lances of the security holders of the Bank incruding complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non_receipt ofdeclared dividends, issue of newT

. duplicate certificates, gen€*'rmeetings etc. and aisisting with quarterry reporting ofsuch complaints.D. r o revrew ot measures taken foreffective exercise oIvoting rights by shareholders.



c. To reviewofadherence to the service standards adopted bythe Bank in respectofvarious services beinS

rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

d. To review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Bank for reducing the quantum of

unclaimeddividendsandensuringtimelyreceiptofdividendwaants/annualreports/statutory
notices by the sharcholders ofthe Bank.

e. Formulation of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various

requests received fr,om shareholders from time to time;

To redress of shareholders' and investors' complaints/ gnevances such as transferofshares' non-r€ceipt

ofbalance sheet, non-receipt ofdeclared dividend etc.

To approve, registet refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other securities:

To s;;-divide,;onsolidate and orreplace any share or other securities certificate(s) ofthe Bank;

Allotment and listing ofshares, appioval of transfer or transmission ofshares, debentures or any other

securities;
To authorise aflixation ofcommon seal ofthe Bank
To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu ofthe or'iginal share/ security(ies)

certificate(s) ofthe Bankaftersplit/ consolidation/ rematerializationand in Replacementofthosewhich

are defacei, mutilated, tom oi old, decrepit, worn out or where the pages on reverse for recording

f.

8.
h.
i.

i.
k.

transfers have been utilized;
l. To approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death ofthe sole/ any

joint shareholdeE
m, To dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

n. To Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal ofinvestor queries and grievancesj

o. To carry out.ny other funciions contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations, Companies AcL 2013 and/

or equity listing agreements (ifapplicable), as and when amended from time-to time; and

p. fo furttrer rteligr-te all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative[s)'

consultant(s), professional(s), or agent(sJ.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DTRECTORS:

Independent Directors of the Bank met during the year on 166 February 2023 to review the performance

of non- lndependent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance ofthe chairperson ofthe

Board and had accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the bank

manaSementand the Board,

During the financial year ended 31{ March,2023 independent directors did not have any pecuniary

relationship with the Bank;neitherdid they have anytransactions with the Bank

ANNUAL GENERAL MEEIINGS AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

The details ofthe Annual General Meetings / Extraordinary ceneral Meeting held in the last three years are

as follows:

ceneml Body
Meetins

Date, Time &venue No. of Special Resolution
Dassed

Extra - ordinary
General Meeting

1j August 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at the
reSistered office address | "The Fairway
Business Park, * 10/1, 1ll2 &12/28 Otf
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Nsyt to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta,
Benqaluru - 560071

1

16d' Annual General
Meeting

30$ May 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registercd office address : The Fairway
Business Park # 10/1, 11'/2 &72128 ofl
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,



Next to EGL Business Park Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

156 Annual General
Meeting

19s Augusr 2021 at 11:OO a.rn. at rhe
registered office address : The Fairway
Business Park # 10/1,1t/2 &72/ZB Oft
Domlur, Xommangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Parh Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

Extra - Ordinary
General Meeting

25d March 2021 at ff,OO a.m. .at ttre
registered omce address : "The Fairway
Business Park # 10/1, 1tlz &t2/ZB Oft
Domlur, Koramangala lnner Ring road,
Next to EGL BusinessPark, Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

4

14s Annual General
Meeting

5-Jun-2020 at 11:00 a.m. at ttre
registered omce address : The Fairway
Business Park, # 10/1,11/2 & 12/28 Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road,
Next to EGL Business Park Challaghatta,
Bengaluru - 560071

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Bank has a whistle blower policy, which was approved by the Boad on 8d" Feb ZO18. The policy provides
a whistle blowing route to employeeq including part time, temporary and contract employees and directors
of the organisation.

Summary ofthe poliry:

' The policy defines the incidents th.t are required to be reported bya whistre blower, the concems and
safeguards to the whistle blower.

' The procedure for raisingan issue under the poricy as we[ as the investigation process and reporting of
thewhistle blowing incidents are detailed in the policy.

CEO and CFO Certificate:

A certificate dated 29d' April 2023 pursuant to the Regulation 17(B) of tre SEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2O1S read with parr B of Schedule lt ther;of, from thi Managing
Director & cEo and the chief Financial officer on the financial statements ofthe Bank for the financial tea;
ended 31d March 2023,was placed before the Board at its meeting held on ZgdApril2023

CodeofConduct:

The Bank has Iaid down Code of Conduct foa Board of Directors and Senior Management. The same is
available on the website ofthe Bank at www.ianabank.com.

certificate by the Managing Director & chief Executive omcer of the Bank regarding compliance with the
Code ofConduct for Directors and Senior Management is given below:

This is to confirm thar:

The Bank has obtained from the Directors and senior Management personner aflirmation that they have
complied witi the code of conduct for Dircctors and senior Management of the Bank for ofthe financial
year ended 3lnMarch, 2023



COMPLIANCES:

There have been no instances of non-compliance by the Bankon any matter related to capital markets, nor

haveany penalty/stricturesbeen imposed on the Bank bythe Registrarofcompanies, Reserve Bankoflndia,

Stock Exchanges oTSEBI o. any other statutory authority on such matters.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual ceneral Meedng

Date and time:
"The Fairway Business Park", * l0/1, 1l/2 A D/28 Off
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business

Park, Challaghana, Bengaluru - 560071



Shareholding Pattern as on 3l March2023:

lana Small Finance Bank llmited
Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar2O23
Sr No. Name of the Equity Shareholder No of Shares % holding

Domestic lnvestor
1 Jana Holdings timited 2,35,15,790 42_88ya
2 QRG lnvestfients and Holdings Limited (earlier known as eRG

Enterprises Umited)
11,50,585 2_O9%

3 Vallabh Bhanshali 1,19,410 O.22o/a
Enam Securiti€s Private limited 4,290 o_o1%

5 EadriNarayan Pilinja 1,15,195 4.27%
6 Vallabh BhanshaliHUF 1,99,958 o_36%
I Growth Partnership ll Shiv Shankar Co-investment Trust r,995 o.oo4%
8 GroMh Partnership ltAjay Tandon Co-investment Trust 825 o.oo2%
9 Bajej Allian2 Life lnsurance Company ttd 1,2,O4,586 2.79%

10 Eajaj Allianr General lnsurance Company Ltd - policyholder Fund 2,52,963 o.46%
11 Baja, Allian2 General lnsurance Company Limited -Shareholder

Fund
1,08,413 o.20%

12 lclcl PrudentialLife lnsurance Company t-td 12,92,246 2.35%
13 lclcl tombard General tnsurance Company Ltd 3,61,316 o_66%
14 Hero Enterprise Partner Ventures s,61,647 1.O2%
15 650 0-oo12%
16 509 o.ooo9%
71 Debdoot Banerjee 229 0.0004%
18 Ananth Kumar M S 249 0.0005%
19 Harnath Kummamuru 453 0.0008%
20 o.o131%
21 518 0.0011%
22 Vidyasagar Bedida 431 0.0008%
23 Amit Raj Bakhi 417 0.0008%
24 6,236 o.ot13%
25 SandeepArora 1,488 o.oo27%
25 Amit Lamba 434 0.0008%
27 Sahillain 11,226 0.0313%
2a 34,451 0-0627%

Sachin Rashmikant Sheh 1t ,226 0.0313%
30 PankajBhalla 253 0.000s%

31 TPG Asia Vl SF fte. l-td 54,57,12s 9.93./"
32 North Haven Private EquityAsia Platinum pte. Ltd 41,47,421 7 -54%
33 Caladium lnvestment Pte. ttd 7,62,604 t.39%
34 Client Rosehill Limited t7,s1,755 3.20%
35 AlphaTC Holdings Pte Ltd 17,4a,97 5 3.18%
36 CVCI GP ll Employee Rosehill timited 9,84,455 L.79%
37 TreelineAsia Master Fund (Singapore) pte. Ltd. 16,52,101 3.OA%
38 Global Financial lnclusion Fund (GLOBAL tMPACT FUNDS SCA

srcAR)
1,41,2a5 o_260/0



39 Harbourvest Partners Cc.lnvesiment Fund lv [.P 25,O4,249 4.550/0

4A Harbourvest Partners Co-lnvestment lV AIF L.P 6,57,616 7.20%

41 Harbourvest Skew Sase AIF L.P. 11,446 o_14./"

42 HIPEP Vlll Partnership Fund t.P. 3,03,543 o.55%

43 HIPEP Vlll Partnership AIF I.P. 2,O2,362 o_37%

44 Harbourvest Asia Pacific Fund vlll L P. 44,265 o.oa%

4S Harbourvest Asia Pacific Vlll AIF L.P. 82,208 0.15%

46 Herbourvest Co-lnvestment Opportunities Fund L P 3,16,193 o-58%

47 Harbourvest Co-lnvest 2017 Private Equity Panners L.P. 6,32342 1_15%

48 The Maple Fund t.P. 632342 1.15%

49 Manipal Research & Management Services lnternatjonal 1,56,500 o-28%

50 Amansa Holdings Pte. Ltd 36,19,944 6_69%

Total s,49,78,703 100.00%

5r No. Name orthe Compulsorily Convertible Prelerence Shares % holding

1 Hero Enterprise Partner Ventures 15,00,00,000 55_56%

2 TPG Asia VISF Pte. Ltd 12,00,00,000 44-44d/a

Total 27,00,00,000 100.00%

Dr. Subhash C Khuntia
Non Executive Chairman

Date : 9ih May 2023

MD & CEO













MMNbeitu & Co LLP
Chart€red Accountanls

81, Dr. Annie BesantRoad
Worli, Mumbai 400013

Khirraj Mansion,

Indep€ld6l Ardito/s Repori
ro th. M€nbar of Jm shaU Fi,m(€ B.nt Umired
R€porr d lhe Audii ol dE limfti.l Sr.r.m. s

L wp hdve dudiFd the drrcmpanysg rituncrdl statcmnrd or j@ rnal riMe Bant Lhjled
rihp 'Bdl' I wturh comp@ rhe Baldm Sher d3 rl VaEh rr, 2023, $" staEment oI prcht
ad lss Accmt, th€ ctatement oI Cash Eows for the ye the ended, and no[ec ro oEIimial 9tat€rotc ieludirg a 6utuDry oI significmr mosting poti.ies ard other
.xpLDtory inf omtion ('the Fimtuial sbtements,,).

2. In ou. opinim md to the b€st oI our intol@tion d a@rding to rhe exptmric giveD
hd us, ihe almeid tM.ral srarpnenl' Fvc Lh. idorutiori rpquiled bv thp &;ting
Regulauon A.r, ta4o wcl s Urp Comp;6 A.t.2m] ("rhe A!rjmd LlF.i-L6d;
Sudelin s i$ued by R.e o 8flt of hdia in dp eMer * requir.d tor ba! .hg
coDpaniar &d aF in .onlomh with a cobtinA pmcrpte. gmcrary ,ftppred u Indr;
itrluding thc a cMtinS sEndoia" 

"p".ri"a 
,.ai, :o u.in I ri or U," r" r ,, oppU..Ut" ro

barls dd giv€ a hue and Ian view ol rhe staie oI afrair oi rhe aanl d at Mda 31, 2023,
md iis prc6t dd its cash flows lor the year €nde<l d thar date.

3. w€ conducted .u audii in accordae with the Siandards on Auditing (sAj) speilid
uder Sctim 143(10) or the Acr Ou resposibdiris uder rhop sian<ta.ds adturthd
desib€d in th€ "Audiiofs RecF@ilrtiti€s for the Au.lit oa rhe Fi@iat Stat€mmts,
sdmorou.report,Weareindepe qt oi the Banlin a(ord@e with the Code ol Ernnt
i$ued b, tlle I$dtute ol chaitered AMtanis or India (ICAI ) rogerher with rhe ethiGt
reqni+renre that m reIevdt to our aud ol rhe Fi@iat Stai€nmts undd rhe provilions
ol th€ Acr md the Rd6 theresder, m.l w. nave fuhned our other ethi.al psp;Gibitities
in redam witn thse requir€mats dd the Code of Ethica. We b€lieve ODt the aud
eviderc we have obtained is sddci..r ed apprcpriate !o prcvide a bari. lo. ou. opinjm,

4- Key audit mtte$ de thoe mattels that, in dr prorEsioml judgmt, w€re oI rMt
signiricme in.u an<tit oI th€ Firmial StatoMts of ine culHt year. Th€s. mtt€6 r@
addresed in ihe Mt€xt of ou! audit oI tie lil]mirt Stat€ments d a whole, md in lohing
ou! opinion ihetur! dd we do not provid€ a *p ate opinion on th6e mtl€B. we hava
detemined dE mn B desibed below ro be oE k.y audir mfteE.

I.!6tili..don &.r Provisioning ol Non-p.rfomins Advan.es (NPA):

Toral NPA a at Mdh 31, 2023: 709.19 Crores
Provisim Id NPA ae at Nrn.h 31, 2023: 241,19 Cioi6



M M Ni$in & co LLP
Chanered Acbmtants

ewin& &d lloor,
81, Dr. Amie Besmr Road
Worli, Mumbai - 400 013

How ou audit ad&css€d thr ks iudil

Id€ iriGdon or NPA dd
re ultlMt oI p&visim on amut
oI NPA is md€ !a*d on 0le
asP'slMt oI Erids aireria
sripuLted in the Reerye B.nI of In.tia
(RBq g delins m,?rudential
No@ on h.on. R<ognftid, AsEr
Clnsifiation ad Provisioing
pertaining to adves' ( txACP).

nE Bank i. aLo Equire.t 16 apply ft3
iudSemrr to derermi.e th.
identifi@tion 6d provi.ion rqdred
agaimt NPAr by applyng
qumiit tir. d wel a qualitativ€
facim. TIE ris* oI idmtijicarim of
NPAS i, afr<ted by fa.toE like sk€s

d liquidity mctu h crtain

IE prcvision agairot adve6 is
tEe<l m dftena sucl d p6i due
3tatus, dr ol ord€r cr,tus etc. nP
prcvide in respet oI tucn NPA' e
@de b erl on ageing and
.lassiricatid ol NPA', r(overy
.3timtes, val@ oI K.ity, eture ol
lo prc<lu.td rl oth€r quatftative
lacloE md i! subj{r ro nnrimun
prcvi.ioning lev€b preited by rhe
RBI.nd apprcv€d policy ol the h6r*
i. thb regdd. ln additim ro this, Ior
mtmctured aftoutr, provirion G
md€ for €rGim/ diminution in ran
value oI rcsEu.tured lom, in
accddee with ti€ RBI guid€lin€s.
Furth€r, NPA .lasifiotion is mde
horcwer eie whereby iI otu rdlity
of dE borowd tRtms NPA rhcn all
Ia.ilitie ol suci a borow{ will be

we hrLe iJLnbled ldendtrihln oa
mJ fovBi!rurron cdrdn.cs as

TeiFd the design Md opeDtins
el{&tivoes of key (mtroG (ftludins
aPPlicatim conkolr) ov€r app&val
Krding, lMilo n& d.l rmv€ry oI
lom, monit ing overdue/sE6*d
a@ut8, idatifi@tion ol NPA, prcvirion
Ior NP.d md valuatio or seority
imluding @Uaterar. T€stiflg d Alpli@tior
onhols iftlurles te.rinS or aubmt€d

Evalu.ted oE 8ov€mfte press md
terted conhols ovs .alolatioro oi
Prcvbion on non-pdfoming advdces,
basis ol ptuvisionjng in amrdm with
tne Berd alptuved poli.,.

SeL.^t .l rhe bo&weB btu.d n
qumtitative d qu.litative isl fa.tor3 ror
their .$6l)ur or aPProldate
.lassilicatim as NPA including
onPutation ol ov€rdue ageing to d*s
iis .oie.t cla$ifi.atid and prcvid@
arcqnt ae pd the IRACP noft and Barl

Perlomed othd flb6t ntive predur6
including but not limited to ttE lol.wing:

s Seldl€d smple o, pdfoming loN an I
B*ssld them indepen.lend, 6 b
whedEr rh€* ehodd b€ clasilied a6 NPA

, IorsmpleFleded,exmine<lthe*erity
vahatioa finmcial statertu.ts md othd
qlalitative i.rormtim ol the bomweB;

a Coreidftd the accouts r€po.ted by the
Bad md oth.r Brnks as Sp€aar M&do
A(outs (SMAI in RBI'3 cmhat
Repcitory of Inlmntion on ljr8€
CrEdib (cRILc) to idmt Jy sh€s;

O Pe omed lnquiii4 wifi tlle @dit ad
6*8ff
;dkfiNd \b

\.#^,.7



M M Ni$im & Co LtP
C]wtered Accountants
Barodawala Matuion.
B Wing,3rd lloot
81, Dr, Amie Bcsant Road
worli, Mumbai - 400 018

a ley audit mtt r in vis oI the
signitumt lwel oI e6timrion involved,
as wel as the chingmt ompliees
laid dom by the RlI in rhi! e8ard,

irrliGtors of sE€s or m ecutrme oI d
evmt of default in a Partiol lod
a@ut or my prcduct etegory whi€h
needs io be @i<lered s NPAi
Aks.d ole approFiaten6 oI .s.t
cl sifi.ation ad adeqla.y o, retat€d
prcvisioning by perlming p,@dur6
s!.1 6 computation or overdue agein&
asesmat oi borower l€v€I. NPA
identilication 6d we.ifi.,iim of
aplt able pryision rater as per IRACP
notm 6d Banls Poliry on t€st ch€ck

Assed the a.lequacy ol dislcur6
agaitut the relevar a(outing srandard.
nnd RBI , eouirem.nts rulahns i. NPA.

lnionn,irlon r..hn.r!tjI lt )lrnon\.'o!l(or!.1\jrt).nttn!rnrrrrtnrrr!rjnq
How ou ,udit addressed rhe key audir

The Bant hs a .onplex IT
mhitechne to srpFrt its day,krday
bl3i&ss operatim. High votume oI
trae.titu € pr@sed md
mrde.l on single o! multipl€

The rcliability and Kurity ol IT
3ystem llays a tey role in the
busires op€ratim or tlE Banl. situe
Idge volume of Etuactiom ar.
Pc€sed dany, orc rT €onhob d€
requir.d ro ensure that appEaliN
Pres data c exPdbed dd that
cnmg6 @ mde in m aplrop.Gle

Appropdat€ IT gqeEl cdhols ad
aPPlicatin conholr aP required to
@u€ ftat smh IT syslems m able to
pM€$ the data, as requiFd,

cosist€ndy lor leliabl€ iindcial

&"K

Our preduru Pith r6?et to rhi. mttq

Ii asesing tne.onEols der the IT ,ysre@
or the BanL @ involved @r te.hmlogy
spdaliet to obi,in an unddsi.nding ol drc
lT envimt, rr inhet !.tur m.l n
syst€m. we aaluated and r$ted reldar
IT general dhols @er the "in-mre" IT
sysbem and II dependmcie identilied 6
relwa.t ior dr audit oI th€ ri.eial
stat€mmts 6d rDeial ieporrinS Ptues
ol the Barn, On such "in-rop€" IT systeme,
we hav€ tested key IT gmerar dboL with
respd ro the lollowing domia:

. ?rog.an chdge Img€mnt, whid
ifth.tes thar plogram chmg6 are
moved to the produ.tion qvirommt
acp€r defined pr@edllE andrrev t
*grgation of mvircIlmnt i. eMred.

. Urd ae6r l)r:mgd€nr, vhich
imludes nsr a.ce$ prcvisimin& de
provisioninq, d..rrG6r, DdMord

5(trq {/



MMNissim&Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

81, Dr. Amie Bcsanl Road
Wo.li, Mumbai - 400 013

KhivrajMansior!

We h.ve identili€d 'IT system md
MEoll as k€y ardit @tter baa!*
or the high-level auromtion,
6iSniliat nu(ber ol sysiem being
6.d by ihe @gEmnr md
thecomplqiiy ol the lI a(hite.ture
d.l its impact on the fi@cial

Iw8.,Mt, smitive ...es nghb
dd segregation of duti6 to fture rhat
privilege c*s to applicatios,
oPeatinS system dd da[ab66 in th€
?rodu.tion envimnt -@ glmte.l
only to authdizd p6o]r1.

Pog.am dwelolnat, which imlud*
.onhols ovd tI applictim
d*elopmt or imtlea€ntatim anl
elited infiashu.hr€. whicl ats rcli.d
lpd f@ linacial reportinA.

IT operatiN, whi.h indu<leo job
s.h€dnin& monitoring dd bactup

We al,o evaluat€d the d€sign md telte<t the
op€hting erledivmGs oI relevdt key Ir
depenrldries withir tne ky bui@s prftse,
which imlu.led rejdng autoruted conhob,
automtql .rrolatim/ a..omting
Prceduree, inrerla.€i segreSation ol .tuti6
od syst€m ge€rate<l repolE, as applicble.

w€ .municated with tho6e .harged with
Sovemdce md m*€met ad test€d a
.ombietion oi comr@ting contrcls .r
re4edialed .onkolr and/or Frfomedalbruiive audit pl@duB, where

Ouropiniol on -p Fr an, rdl\r.i r nFd r. n^r. ar .1. otn 1 mlo-T,b .r dnd hp kJl

5, The Banl'3 sord of DiHbn e Fponsrblp for [F oUFr idoretsm. IlE othd
uJo:fthon @npn*s th. irnbtubm frluded in th. Amu.l Repolt but dos noL itrtude
the FiMnd qDtemmts sd dr.udJb'/s reporl th.ron. UF Atrual Repo b elp*ted
!o be md. .hiLble ro u5 altcr rh. <tdre or th; cudnor,e Fpo' i.

not er press dy form oI a ss! ran.e .on ln sion L\ereon
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Khivraj Mansion,

In conne.tio with ou audit oI rhe Fiencial Stat nenre, our rcsporBibitity b ro read th€
otlEr inlormrid idenrili€al ab6ve whm brom6 availade a;d, i,1 do;g $, cmjd€r
whprher lle oLhr ido,mrim ir rrcri.uy itrotubtent I i$ $e rmtriat il,rpomls or
ou ].rcwled8. ob@ed in the dud*, or o$tuLe dppeds io be mFridlly ochled.

VtItr wF ead thc Almrl Fepon. ii wa @rclude that drerc 15 d mr.ri.l tu$ralemtrl
ther ein. h e are rquiJ?d b 

' olmmi.aF 0re mdrrpr [o lncc charSed with go! erutre .nd
t le appropriate a.tion d appli.able under tn€ retevdt raw 6d- reglrad;E.

R.epucibnlie of Mdaa.m€nt aa Those Ch.rg€d w h cov€m.re toi ft. Find.i.l

Au.llto1. Responsibilid.a fd th. Audit of rhe Find.i.r Staren€nk

3. ou obietiv€s d. io obt2in @$mbl€ .surc about wnerher the li@ial S!.t€rcnts
d a whole arc Irc hom mterial mistat€mat, wneth€! due to lrard or @r, and to issued aurlibo/s r€pdt th6t inclqd6 @, opinior Rea@ble amrm@ b a high level of
sera@ but is not a guddte€ ttDt an audit.ondu.ted in arcldmc with sAs;vin atMre
delect. mhJ mi$r.lerffit whn . \L MNhFn{6. ff lrom fraud or .;r
and are cotuidlred mterial it hdivi.luaUy or ir the .ggl€gate, di€y c@td r€ ombt, b€
exp{Ed b influetue the rcnonn deisioru of lers bt6 6 trE &ris of rhee Fi@icial

The Banl's Board oi Dnetos aE rsporoible lor the mtt€rs stated in S..iion 134(5) oI rhe
A.l wilh 16!rl ro lJE preparario Md prc.or.tim ot rJEse fiMn ]rl st te nb thal
give a FuF md fan r ,@ of th, riMdl pcrtjoo fi|rd ut perioM. .nd (sh flows or
tIE BarJ in 4ninm wiLh rlr c@nhnB pmipts gwr,ll) drceptpd in tndir.
includirS fic A@tin8 Sbddrds rp(G.d un&. S€tid trJ ot dE Act, md the
prcvieiotu of 54 bon 20 of the 8.ntDg Rcgx latim A\ L r94o dd .i^-das. gudelin., anddikti@ i$ued by the Rereee Bd* of India (,,RBr") rrom tire -ro tift. This

'c?N,hlity a&o Ddud6 minbenance of ad,qute ffiunrn8 Ro,& D c@rdffi.
wrth th. p' oviriotu oI rhe 4.r tor ldeSuardinS or rrE d*ts of LlF"ou,* -a ro, p,",*ting
dd dcrertru frauds md otlEr irpg.l-ibe;: el6-tion and ,pptc,um oi aiprcprui
arohtingpolicis;n ling judgmmts md 6tiMtes thatmrea3onabledd prudmr, dd
d.rign, mplemmr,tid d ruintame ot rdequare jlfrn rilrm Et mE;b, [Dr vere
oPeroq8 €fffrtivdv ior eDUrinE lne Nrary and omphFE. o, th. a..outlrg
' 
tudr rekvmt b the preplhrio and pemhhm or $e I ilUndt StalcmnB Ur/r giv;

, bue and fair vi4 Md @ fre. hom turerul misslated.ni, whcrher due !o fraud or ercr

h Plepding rhe Finmial StaterEnts, the Bodrt ol Dire.tors are reeposibte for asssing
the Bdnlt ,b iq b mntinu. s a gong contrm. da to\ing, as appU;abh. mneB ElaleJ
b 9068 .@€m du $inB uF going ! m m batu or a(enting unip$ o1fu8€t)mt dd
Boud ol DEror5 eith4 inbd' to hqurdare rh. 8dn! or to .u. ope,tjn;, or has no
Falbtn alkrutsve bu L to do 50. The B@rd or DifrroB are dl$ Fqpmibtc ,or ov€rwin8
the aank's fi@i.l reporting prcs.
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LI

Ar pari oi d audrt n d.rcrom Mrh 9A'. we hmte prc,F,ional judSnent dd lt1Mrah
profesDn l sleptici6d drcuqhour th€ audir. we atso

Idmtily and 6Fs Ae risl6 ol Mterial misstat€Mt ol the rimcial Statemmb, whethq
dle to 6aud o! €mr <l6ign md pdiom audn predrres respoEive to rhop .isk, and
obrain audit evidfte ftat ii sul6.imt md apprcprile !o provide a basis Ior our opinim.
th€ rist ol not d€E:ring a mteriar nistat€mmt resdting ,rcm fhu.l is highd rho for
me resdring iom uror as lrard my involve collueiol forgdy, inrenriml misim,
mimpEentatioro, or the oveEide of inremal .onkol.

obtain e udeEtdiling ol irreml .onkol relevant to rh€ audit in orde. bo .l6ign aldt
lrfteduG tIEt re apprcpriate in the cirdmratuB. Under S€.rim 143(3Xi) or rhe Acr,
we are also F8prEible Ior dpresing @r opinjm.n wh.rhe. dE lar ( hs int€mal
fi@ial cmEob with referene to the li,1aiat Stat€merb in ptac rnd the opentirg
€rlftdreess .f $.h ..ntuIi

Eval@te the apprcpriateles oI a@nting polici€s Ged dd rhe r€dombtms oI
aeuting $timtes and related didmrs @de by lrlmSemmt or die Banl.

Comlude on the alproprialdGs oI rnaSemn(6 6e ol dr€ going concem bsi. ol
doudng dd ba*d m ihe audit &idtue obrained, whethd a mreriar wqtainty
erLts relad to Nent3 .r .onditioro rhat my ost significat doubt m tn€ Bot s abnfty
to contine ad a goinS cm(m. w€ @lude that a mt€riar ffieriainry exists, w€ m
equired ro draw att6ti@ in our audftols r.porfto rtre relaled dis.l@m in rle Fi@jal
Stathmts or, il cuh dislsures e ira.lequat€, to nodif, our opinim, Our @clusiotu
de ta.ed on the audi widma obtained up to the date oI ou .adto4 epon Howevd,
tufine .vmts or conilitiG my cauF th. Bar* to ce* ro ontjrue ae a going @.e,

Evaluie th€ ovdarl pBmtati@, shrtup and @ntenr ol the liIlftiat Stateodts,
in hding tIE dirloflrs, md whethe. the Fimcid Statemts represt tlE undqlyiiig
ham.Iioc ard wenb in a mer OEt achiev€s Iair pffimiarlm.

We maicat€ kith th6e clErg€d witn govem. regardiD& anong othd mfi€s, th€
plared rcle ant timing of the audit and signitumt aud findings, nctuding my
signiii@t deri€imies in inrem,r.onEol out we idmtify during M andir

we ,.lso puide thGe .harg€d wior g@e'r@ce with a siar€mmt thar ve have @npUed
with ftleat ethical rcquimt' rgalding in l€pendeEe, md to commic.te d0r
rnem tI elatiolships md othd mtte$ oEr My reGoEbly tE th@ght t b€d on tu
ind€pmd€re, md wh@ applicable, related eleg@.b-

Itum the etters @mui.ated with thGe dEge.t with govmce, we dekmift thG.
mne6 that wft o, most signifi.me in the audft ol the FiMftial State,mts oI the (:lllMr

rr dd dr€ thdelm the l.y rudrl tubh we de*rib€ li+e mtic6 s ou .u.[io'/s
rt unless Iaw or reAulation ptuludcs public dis.losure about
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erhemely re .no$lame, we deternire thar a mner dhould not h€ conmEiabed in
or Fporl b<ause th€ advme .onsequ€nces ofdoingso routd rNombty bc c\pRted !o
@tw€i8h lhe pubh DleFst b.npht5 oI such (ffimirtion

Report or ornd l€gd ed rcgul.rory rcqdfthata

13. Inour opinioo th. BarreShftt md th. srarenmt oI PrcIirand trB A.emthave b€a
dnwn up in amid.ft with th€ prcddm of Sdion 19 o, the Banling riegnlariq Act,
1949 and Sftiion 133 ot Er€ Act,

14. & requt€.Iby rtrEktion (3) oI Se.tim 30 oI the Banling ReSulnlim A.r, 1q9, w€ reFrt

(a) we have obt in d arr lhe hf()Imtion dd erplaMdonc whi.b ro tn€ hert of dr
rnowledge m.l belief, werc M6sry lor the pupoe o, our auait and hnve round 0lm

P) rne tral1ftti@ o, the Barle whi.h have @me ro @r mtie, ha* bs within the
powm of tlle Banlc

(c) hnnB th€ cMse oI M audit, we have vi6id 23 branches bo examine rh€ boorc of
...out ed othd r{dd, @intained ar rhe bran h dd pedom€d oiher r€t*mr au<tit
pM€du€s. Sire the rey op€htioro oI 0E !ar* aE autoMrBl wfth oE t€y
applicatim integ.ated to th€ cm banLin8 sysrem, ttE au.tit is cdied ont @hauy at
the Bant'3 Had Offie l@ted in B.ng.r@, as atl the neery Hordr and data
rcguir€d Ior the px rpos ol @r audil m avfulabh GeE.

15, As required by S€.tion 143(3) oI the A.i, we report oEt

(a) We hnve seght dd obt ire.l aI the iniomtim ad qplanatim wnicn to tn€ b6tof
ou tnowL<lge dd b€liel wft n@ery ror the purpGm of our audit

(b) In@opinioryprcp€rboot old.outasrequirerlbyl2wh.vehe6k.ptbyoEBant
so tu as it a?pem nom @r exmiMtion ol those bookr,

(.) The BaIre Sheet, rie Staremat o1 Prcfit ad tds Ac.omr md rhe cEh llow
Si.re@nt aleali w h by thic reFrr m in agreen€nt wfth the b.o*e oI aMi

(d) In ou olinior! the aloeeid Finmial Statemmb 6nply wnh trE Arcuntirg
Standards rpeifi.d n i.r s<tion 133 of the Act, to the €xt€nt th€y e nor ir@istent
with thE Suid€li!6 Pr*ib.<l b,y RBI,

(e) On the bsb oi th€ written r€pBenhtic rftived lrm trE rtii{roE d on Mar! 31,
2023, r.ld on @ord by th€ Bodd ol Dn€cbE, mre oI the .lirecto8 ic dirrSualind 3

ffiffi
\N1.",./

.n Ma(h 11.2023 Gom b.'r8 appntr ed :( a drelt.r 
'n
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6 with resp*t to ttE adequag oI tne intemal fimiar mtrols witrr relerft. ro rimi.l
Statemts or the Bar& and the oFratirg efie.tivenes or sucn cmhols, rcrer ro oD.
sepuale 4po in "A@urc A'l; ed

(d winr r6p(t to rhe other mne6 to be imluded in the Audito!,s R.port in accor.le
wrLh Rule tl of thp Compmi6 (Audrrand Audrlos) Rutps.2m4 (; dddedl. Dtu
opituon dd to the best oi @r u ormtjon .nd dctrdin8 b fie p\plaDbore grven b

i. The BarllE di*iced trE impacr or pddirg litigarioc on its fi@iat pos im in
its Fimi.r Staiemenk - Reler S.hedule 18,13 to rhe rbffiiat SrarerEntsi

n. Th€ Bdl did not have any long-term conha.t3 including daivative co.hdt3 for
which th@ w* my mrerial foreeabt€ lGpr.;

in, Thqe w€re .o alMts which were r.quired !o b€ kan6f€EEd io rh. rnveto
Edu€tion md Prctection Fud by th. Bdl;

iv, (a) nre nErugel]ut hd rcpmmted n\at, b tne best oifts liowr.dge ad b.li.t, other
the as di&lG..l in th€ 13.22(w) no f!nd. have bM .dv;ed or lo6dd or
invst€d (atlEr,rc6 boMed run.t o 6hare pFmiud or y othdmu(esd
Lind of fur&) by rhe B.Jir ro or h Mv ou,e,;6m{st mEiyriesl ddudug
Iorci8n otities ("lnterm.di.riei), wi,l $e underuhndin& hhel\o rrorded ;
EitinSd otheBi... trDt the Intpmcdirry shall. vherher. diEttv or i^dudty.
I€nd or i^vst D ol}F psom d mbties idotifi.d D d, lffi; h,L,mver dy
tr on berEu oI rl€ Ba* (,ultimre Bqe6cidi6") or prcvide dy $ ere.,reity or rhe lil€ d behau of the lntimte am€ftjanesj

(!) The mg€'Mt hae reppsted thar, ro oE bsr oi it3 tn@ted8€ m.t belier,
oth{ tlm e disloed in ne 18,22(w), no tunds hav€ bM reiv€a by ft. Ba*
6on sy !6on(s) or dtity(i6), including IorciF mtties (!u..ling ?arties1,
eith ihe md€Etandin& whether Korded in e.itirg or orheMise, thai the Bant
stEI, whether, .liKdy or indiBtt, tend or inv€et in other p€rsru d entiti€s
id€ntified in a.y Md whats@vd b, or m h.har oI dE luding pa y
("Utiimre B€neli.iari6") o. ?nvid€ my glEbteo smnty o! rrE lite ; b€hair
oI rhe ulrimr. Bdefici i6; and

(.) Ba*d on e.n audii prrednps thar we cmid@d re ombl€ dd appmpriate
in the citmrrer mrhmg n6 come to ou nodce tlEt ha,.a!*d ; !o beti€E
that rlE repr*entarim ud.r b{taure (.) dd (b) miain ey mred,l

v. The B.nl has not delared sy.livids.l .luing Ele yd, md
As prclbo to Rul€ 3(1) or fi€ Co(pmis (A(omts) Rules, m14 (6 anmded), ,hich
prcvidec lor @intaining books oI accomr in a.rcunting soltwm having a learft
of Eordin8 audit bail ol ea.h md 4ery tsam.rior! creating a .dit IoA of ea.h
.nrnae mde in boo}j oI a..our alonq w,r}t tlP drh whm eulh.ttu€ wm md.
lld ejlsing trEr the audil b.n *-"t U" amor.a. *.p6qff5!r" r.,* *,ty

ffir,&\\/9
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srLh .II4l froD tirDtril ) qd h,gu1M8 Aprit r. 2O2J thp FpdbnS mdtr, Lusp (g,
or Rule tl oI Lh. comp ies tArdrt rd Audib6t Ruta. 2Ol4 (d mnded), ir
erendy nor aPPlnable.

16. h ou. opinim arxl to th€ b6r of @r irJo@tion e.l acording to tE dplmrim giv{
rour the prcviBiotu ofs€.tion lclorthe actare noiappti.abte to fie Ba by virtue of
se.tion 358(2A) or the Banling Regdation Ad,1949. A@rdingly, rhe repdting ude!
Section 197(15) ol the Act reAdding payrent/ Ploiirion lo. runagerial remu.rarion ir
accordafte with the rcqubit€ approvals DDndat€d by tne prcvisions oI kion 197 read
wilh Schednre V :o the A.t, ir .ot appliable.

lorM M Nissim &Co LLP
Chartercd Accountants Chariered A.coutants

(Fim Regishanon No. 0005155)

Membership No. 090847
UDIN: 430908478GXVAR7847

Date: April29, 20a3

Memb€rship No,086761
UDIN: 430867618GWJIN2751

Date April 29, 2023
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4trtu A to tnd.Dfldmt Audjlo/r RcDon
Refrnpd to n pdraF.ph 16{0 o, rhe tndcpmdent A udirois Report oI dh date !o tnp mmbeE
or Jm Se[ FU1!m sdnl Lmr.d d rtre rMi.l sbremsts ior rhe yar ehdcd M.,ch ]r.
2023

R€pon m th. htm.l flnd.id Contlols wtth cfercrc. ro Ftmi:l St.t€mmt, n.t r
d.sc (t) of sub.{€ctim 3 of Sdion 14r or tL€ A.t

1. We hav. ardited 0E inrml fi@ial conholr wfth refelwe [o Fimial Statemhrs oI
lm Sm,I Fi@c€ Danl Lifrit€d ('tlE Dan() s ol Mard 31, 2023, in @jNtim w h M
audit or U€ fimial st te@.ts of the Banl ror EE yer en led on tlEt dare.

M.n8@ngs R.dpd.ibility for Inr€ .l Firuiat Conkol.

2. The Ba*.'s mnag€l@t is Bpmible ior esrabhhing 6d minraining inteEEl 6@ial
co.Eols b6pd on the intemal .onkol der lirlmi.l repdtin8 crileria esrablbh€d by tlrc
Banl @id€ring the *ftiar cohponents oi lnren r corEol srar€d in th. cuidare Noie
m Audit of lr*€m,l li@iat Conholr Ova Fi@ciat Reporrins (,,rhe cuidre Noh,,)
Bu.d h fi€ IrEritu!. of chdercd Aoouht'or tndrd{.'tcAt'r. nEA Esponibilid.;
ircludethe<l6iSwimplematatima.dminren e of adequate intemal tinejat cmtsots
thal r cF operating e(rtivery lor mu rinB rhr dd4tJ dd efhomL Mducr o, its busines,
in.ludin8 adnemc io 8*rrdr polriee. rh, elegxdrdhg of itr.s.rs. G. pBqEm and
dctr.tjd oI frauds dd eno6. fie d.ora.y dd (1rpt€tos ot ihe .mubn8 l@rds.
m<l th€ ti@ly prEEatid or reliable Iim.ial inlomtion, as requied mdd di &t

Audito6 RdpotuiDility

3. Ou EpoEibility ir ro dpres h opinion on the Bankd;te@t fiwiat MhoL wih
ref€rme to Finmial Stat€nents bred on our audft. W€ .onducred our adit in d.rd,ne
with the CDid4€ Note ud th€ St ndards on Audfting demed to be pEribed sdd
S€.tion 1rt3(10) of the Act to the errdr appti@bte to a au.l oI inr.h.l fiemial cmtrots,
botfi applicabl€ to & audit o, intemnl fim.iar MEols md bori imed by the ICAI. Ihoe
stan<luils an.l the Gui.Lfte Note requne thar we omply with ethiml €quiremntg od
lleandpe mtheauditioobhinre mbl€a$urtueaboutwhetherad€qeteinre@t
ri]dciar conEols with rer€]@e to Finmial srarenentd was eshblished and min|inal
and if such contols opeiatcd L.ffeciively in a1l materidt rspecb.
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4. Our audit inv.lves pqfominS prc.edurcs to obtain audit evid6@ about tie adeqG.y ot
the int @l fimial Mhols system with refercme to Fi@ial Stat€mmr, ;d ti€ir
opehtinS erfstivm3. our audft oI inr.rEl fimial onkob with refereme to Fi@cial
Slahoent' mluded obtzuug d ddeFmdus of inberMl tDncjdt onEoL qth
r.i.'e@ o Fill,ftid Slaremts, d$sing rhe n,tr that. mhdl walncss.\irl!, dd
i6ting ed evaluating the decign and operatirg ellftrivdes oI inleml .onkol based on
dE asssd rirL TIe pM€du€s sele.d depetul on the anditols judg€mmt, iftlu.ling
drc d*smat of ttle rirk oI mre.ial mistalemi ot the Fimiat St temenb. whedE;
due to fhu.l or tur.

5. W€ b.liw€ thai tlre audit aidme we nave obhjned i6 sriticidt and appropiat€ to
paide a baeie lor dr audit olinion on Orc Bants's inrerrl fituial rcntsols swrem witr
rel€reNe b Fimial Stakrenh

Meaning of Intm.l FiMn i.l conboL wirh rd€M.e to tind.iat er*€m.nrd

6. A Bank's iniehal li@irl conhols wtn rele@e to Finmial Saremots is a pM6s
<lesigre.l to provid€ re@Mble amrme egardirS tne reliabitity of Inmial repdhng
ad the !repdati@ of Filmcial Srat llEts ,or €xtrm,1 Ptrpo*s in Kddme witi
Senenlly ftept€d dmrinS principles. A Bantss int€fDr fi@ial @!EoL sfth
refs€Ne to Fiffii.l statermts itrlu<ler thop ponci6 d pr@al@c rhit (1) P€ ain ro
the @inth e or m& tlut, in reamble detait, a@ratdy 6d L y ;fl<t the
b4etioro m.l di.pGitiom ol the aseis ol rl€ Banl, (2) prcvid€ reamble asurc thar
tlalr*tios m ko.ded as n(ssry to pmit prep ation oi Fimial Staiere.t in
ac€ordm€ with goeEly a(elted a@utilg rrir.ipl€e, md that K€ipB md
expenditurB or the lar} @ b€ing @de only in {ordm. with authoierim of
tw8€mat sd dndos oi th€ Btu& ad (3) povide reambre a$ENe re8ardnr8
psotim or timely deie.tion oI 1mutltoriied acquisition, !e, or di+cition d th€ Banl'c

*ts thnr @ld have a mltrial dltr 6. tne FiEmial siar.mets.

h,hercnt Liniiain,x ol lnr.rnilFinan.ial ( onrolslilh rerfle

7, B{aus oI the inhercnt limitatim ol inteml finarciat mrroL wirl rele]@e to Fimial
Statemmb, ind!.ti.g the posibility or .onusi@ u imlropd ,1.fugftnt ovedde oI
cmtsols, mtedal misrateMts .lue ro .ror or fraud my cdr md not b. dete.d, Atso/
prcjetim.I dy walution oI the inrertul fituncial conEob with reierere ro Fi@ial
Starements to tutuft pdiods are subid to the rbl rhat rn€ interul liMrciat cmtrob pi0r
ref€retue to Fimcial St lrm€nrs my b€ome iMdquare b€.aup ol.hdges in conditiom,
or that dE deere of @mpliatue with tlte policies d prd-d!6 may det€rid.re.
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h @ opirior! th€ aark hs, in aU mt€rial r€spetl, m adequre inthat lill@ial orrcl6
system with rcfer4e to Fimi.l statemats dd such inr.m, rin cial Mhots willl .€telee
ro litu.ial Slarcren6 wep oFrabns dr{b\ety as rt Vd,cn tt, m2l, baed o LIF intemal
rcnhr wtr Ii@ial Fpodin8 rrilem Bbblshed b\ rhe Bdrl .mid€rhg th. .Mudl
compoME oI inh.rn l @nhl st red h rhp uudA e Nole isu€d bv IcAl
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Registered Office: 

Jana Small Finance Bank Ltd. 

The Fairway Business Park, # 10/1, 11/2 & 12/2B, Off Domlur, 

Koramangla Inner Ring Road, Next to Embassy Golf Links, 
Challaghatta, Bengaluru ‐560071. 

CIN No. U65923KA2006PLC040028 

T    +91 80 4602 0100 

E    info@janabank.com 

W  www.janabank.com 

NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Jana Small Finance 
Bank Limited will be held at shorter notice, on Friday, 23rd June 2023 at 3:30 p.m at the Registered 
Office of the Bank situated at The Fairway Business Park, First Floor, # 10/1, 11/2 & 12/2B Off 
Domlur, Koramangala Inner Ring road, Next to EGL Business Park, Challaghatta, Bengaluru – 
560071, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Approval and Adoption of Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 31st 
March 2023 along with Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report: 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 and Profit and 
Loss Account of the Bank for the year ended 31st March 2023, together with Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March 2023, Notes to Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ 
Report thereon and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT the Bank do hereby adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, 
the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date along with Cash Flow Statement, Notes 
to Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ending on that 
date.” 

2. Appointment of Mr. Rahul Khosla (DIN- 03597562) as a Director who retires by rotation: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,         
Mr. Rahul Khosla (DIN- 03597562), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the 
Bank.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To pay fees or compensation exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the total remuneration payable 
to all the Non-Executive Directors, to Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia (DIN: 05344972) : 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17 (6) (a) and (ca) and other applicable Regulation(s), if 
any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and applicable Provisions(s), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Members of the Bank be and is hereby accorded 
to pay fees or compensation, if any to Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia (DIN: 05344972), Independent and 
Non- Executive Director, exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the total annual remuneration / fees 
payable to all the Non-Executive Directors during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and       
Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company Secretary of the Bank be and are hereby severally authorized for and 
on behalf of the Bank to do or cause to do all acts, matters, deeds and things and to execute all 



 

documents and to take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required, 
necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the above resolutions and make all such 
filings as are required under the Companies Act, 2013.” 

4. Amendment to Articles of Association 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of Section 14 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder 
and Regulation 35B of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 Shareholders hereby approve to amend the 
Articles of Association of the Bank which shall be subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shareholders hereby approve the amendment as follows: 

102 MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL 

The Board of Directors may, in accordance with the Act and subject to the provisions 
of the Banking Act and such guidelines as may be issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
from time to time appoint a Managing Director for a term of not more than five years 
at a time. 

In addition to Managing Director, the Board may appoint Whole Time Director/s (either 
named as Executive Director/s or Deputy Managing Director/s or by whatever name 
called) on Board who shall be in whole time employment of the Bank and shall not be 
subject to retirement by rotation. Further, such appointee shall may be entrusted with 
such powers as the Board may deem fit from time to time and who shall exercise such 
powers subject to superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors and 
whose terms of appointment and remuneration structure shall be as defined by the 
Reserve Bank of India. 

(a) The Managing Director or the Whole Time Director/s (either named as 
Executive Director/s or Deputy Managing Director/s or by whatever name 
called) as the case may be shall have the knowledge and experience as 
required under Section 10B (4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. If a 
Managing Director/ a Whole Time Director ceases to hold office as Director he 
shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be a Managing Director/ Whole Time 
Director as the case may be. 

(b) In the event of any vacancy arising in the office of Managing Director/ Whole 
Time Director, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors and the 
Managing Director/ Whole Time Director so appointed shall hold the office for 
such period as the Board of Directors may fix. 

(c) When the Managing Director has been appointed and holding office as such, 
he/she shall have subject to the supervision, control and directions of the 
Board, the management of the whole of the business of the Company. 

103 Remuneration of Managing Director and/ Whole Time Director/ s 

The Managing Directors and/ Whole Time Director/s shall, each of them, be paid for 



 

their respective services such remuneration on such terms as the Company may, by 
resolution of Shareholders, from time to time determine in accordance with the Act 
and the Banking Act and such guidelines as may be issued by the RBI or such other 
authority, from time to time. 

105 Expenses to be charged to the Company 

The Managing Directors and/ Whole Time Director/s shall be entitled to charge and 
be paid for all actual expenses, if any, which they may incur for or in connection with 
the business of the Company. Further, Managing Director shall be entitled to appoint 
part-time employees in connection with management of the affairs of the Company 
and shall be entitled to be paid by the Company for any remuneration that they may 
pay to such part-time employees. 

106 Power of Managing Director and/ Whole Time Director 

The Managing Director and/ Whole Time Director, shall, subject to the supervision and 
control of the Directors have power to do all acts and things which the Managing 
Director and / Whole Time Director shall think usual necessary or desirable in the 
management of the affairs of the Company. Without prejudice to their general powers 
conferred hereby, they shall have the following powers subject to the supervision and 
control of the Directors: 

(a) to pay the costs, charges, and expenses, preliminary and incidental to the 
promotion, formation, establishment and registration of the Company and 
subsequent to the registration fees and stamps paid in respect thereof and 
the costs of advertising, printing, stationery, brokerage, legal charges, furniture 
and fittings of office and such other costs. 

(b) to sell for cash or on credit and either wholesale or in retail and for ready or 
future delivery and realize the proceeds of sale of property, movable or 
immovable or any rights or privileges belonging to the Company, or in which 
the Company is interested or over which the Company may have any such 
powers of disposal and to exchange any such property or rights belonging to 
the Company for other property or rights. 

(c) to determine, from time to time who shall be entitled to sign on the Company’s 
dividend warrants, releases, contracts, and documents and to give the 
necessary authority for such purposes. 

(d) to execute all deeds, agreements, contracts, receipt and other documents that 
may be necessary or expedient for the purposes of the Company and to make 
and give receipts, releases and other discharges for moneys or goods or 
property received in the usual course of business of the Company or lent or 
payable to or belonging to the Company and for the claims and for the claims 
and demands of the Company. 

(e) to institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any actions, suits and 
legal proceedings by or against the Company or its officers, or otherwise 



 

concerning the affairs of the Company and also to compound or compromise 
or submit to arbitration the same actions suits and legal proceedings. 

(f) to enter into, vary or cancel all manner of contracts on behalf of the Company. 
(g) to engage and in their discretion to remove, suspend, dismiss and remunerate 

bankers, legal advisers, accountants, managers, cashiers, clerks, agents, 
commission agents, dealers, brokers, foremen, servants, employees or vary 
description and to employ and remunerate such professional or technical or 
skilled assistants as from time to time may in their opinion be necessary or 
advisable in the interests of the Company and upon such terms as to duration 
of employment, remuneration or otherwise and may require security in such 
instances and to such amounts as the Managing Directors think fit. 

(h) to acquire by purchase, lease, exchange, pledge, hypothecation or otherwise 
transfer lands, estates, fields, buildings, office showrooms, godowns and other 
buildings in the State of Karnataka or elsewhere Machinery, Engine, Plant, 
Rolling Stock, Tools, Machine Tools, Outfits, Stores, Hardware and any other 
materials of whatever description either on credit or for cash and for present 
or future delivery. 

(i) to plant, develop, improve, cut down, process, sell or otherwise dispose of the 
products of the Company and to incur all expenses in this behalf. 

(j) to erect, maintain, repair, equip, alter and extend buildings and machinery in 
the State of Karnataka or in any other place. 

(k) to enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind and vary all such 
contracts, and execute and do all such acts, deeds and things in the name and 
on behalf of the Company as they may consider expedient for or in relation to 
any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the purposes of the Company. 

(l) to pay all moneys due by the Company and look after the finance of the 
Company. 

(m) to open current and time-deposit accounts or other accounts with banker or 
bankers at their choice, and to operate on such accounts and also when 
necessary to overdraw or take loans on such account on the security of the 
Company or of any of its assets. 

(n) to draw, accept, endorse, discount, negotiate and discharge on behalf of the 
Company all bills of exchange, promissory notes, cheques, hundies, drafts, 
railway receipts, dock warrants, delivery orders, Government promissory notes, 
other Government instruments, bonds, debentures or debenture-stocks of 
Corporation, local bodies, port trusts, improvement trusts or other corporate 
bodies and to execute transfer deeds for transferring stocks, shares or stock 
certificates of the Government and other local or corporate bodies in 
connection with any business or any subject of the Company. 

(o) subject to Article 59 to borrow from time to time such sums of money for the 
purposes of the Company upon such terms as may be expedient and with or 
without security. 



 

(p) to receive and give effectual receipts and discharge on behalf of and against 
the Company for moneys, funds, goods, or property lent, payable or belonging 
to the Company or for advances against and with or without security. 

(q) to make or receive advance of money, goods, machinery, plant and other 
things by way of sale, mortgage, hypothecation, lien, pledge, deposit or 
otherwise in such manner and on such terms as the Managing Director may 
deem fit. 

(r) to submit to arbitration and enforce the fulfillment of awards regarding any 
claims in which the Company may be interested, to adjust, settle or 
compromise any claims due to or by the Company and to give to debtors of the 
Company time for payment. 

(s) to institute, appear in or defend any legal proceeding in the name of and on 
behalf of the Company to sign any pledging and other documents to engage 
and to instruct any advocates, solicitors and lawyers and to execute any 
vakalat or other authority in their favour and to compound and compromise 
any claim suit or proceedings. 

(t) to make all manner of insurances. 
(u) to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions for the time 

being vested in the Managing Director and also from time to time provide by 
the appointment of an attorney or attorneys to sign, seal, execute, deliver 
register or causes to be registered all instruments, deeds, documents or 
writings, usually necessary or expedient for any of the purposes of the 
Company and not requiring the common seal of the Company. 

Provided that the Board may from time to time revoke withdraw alter or vary all or any 
of the above powers. 

Clause 2 
of Part B 

"Key Personnel" means the Chairman, the Executive Vice-Chairman, the Chief 
Executive Officer, the Managing Director, Whole Time Director (designated as 
Executive Director/s or Deputy Managing Director/s or any other name), the Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in each case by whatever title or equivalent 
title so given from time to time or any one of them as the context requires. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director & CEO and Company Secretary are severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution”. 

5. Approval for reduction in Exercise Price for ESOPs granted to employees pursuant to the ESOP 
Plan 2017 and ESOP Plan 2018 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 62 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment of 
the Act, for the time being in force, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 
(“SCD Rules”), the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 



 

Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021, including any modifications thereof or supplements thereto 
(as applicable) (“SEBI Regulations”) and in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, 
as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or 
imposed while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions which may be agreed 
to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “the Board” which term 
shall be deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)), consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to revise the exercise price of 
employee stock options (“ESOP(s)”) granted by the Company to its employees/ESOP holders as of 
the date of this resolution, that was issued pursuant to the Employee Stock Option Plan – 2017 
(“ESOP Plan 2017”) and the Jana -Employee Stock Option Plan – 2018 (“ESOP Plan 2018”), and 
that were adopted by the Company on June 30, 2017 and April 04, 2018 respectively.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board and/or NRC be and are hereby authorized to revise, update, 
amend and/or modify the original grant letters (recording the original exercise price) that were 
issued to the ESOP holders or issue any other form of communication as may be required (including 
but not limited to new grant letters) to the ESOP holders, to intimate them of the change in exercise 
price and to give effect to the change in exercise price in accordance with the ESOP Plan 2017, 
ESOP Plan 2018 and applicable laws.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board and/or NRC be and are hereby authorised on behalf of the 
Company to make any / further modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revisions in the 
ESOP Plan 2017 and ESOP Plan 2018 from time to time as permitted under and in due compliance 
with provisions of the Act, SCD Rules and other applicable laws and to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things and sign deeds, documents, letters and such other papers as may be 
necessary, desirable and expedient, as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit or necessary or 
desirable for giving effect to the reduction of exercise price of the ESOPs granted and with power 
on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard 
without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members of the 
Company.” 

6. Approval of the Equity and Preference Shareholders for the Amendment to the terms of 
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares issued by the Company : 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 48 and Section 55 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time and/or other applicable provisions of laws and 
statutory and/or regulatory requirements), and the articles of association of the Company, the 
approval of the equity shareholders be and is hereby accorded to amend the terms of Compulsory 
Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) issued by the Company, as detailed below: 
 
 
 



 

Existing Terms  Revised Terms 

The Investor CCPS shall have principal loss 
absorption through conversion to common 
shares at 4 (Four) objective pre-specified trigger 
point(s) set out below.  

Terms of Conversion 

Voluntary Conversion 

The Investor shall have the right to require an 
automatic conversion of the Investor CCPS at 
any time at its discretion on or after April 1, 
2023. In case of such conversion, the 
conversion price of the Investor CCPS shall be 
determined by a merchant banker appointed by 
the Investor or INR 3000 crores, whichever is 
lower. 

Mandatory Conversion  

The Investor CCPS shall mandatorily convert into 
Equity Shares of the Banking Company on the 
earlier of: 

1. 1 (one) day prior to the date on which the 
final prospectus in relation to a potential 
initial public offer of the securities of the 
Banking Company (“IPO”) is filed with the 
relevant Registrar of Companies (“RoC”);  

 

2. August 31, 2029, if the IPO is not 
completed by August 31, 2029; 

3. the Banking Company having Common 
Equity Tier 1 capital of 7% (seven percent) 
of the risk weighted assets of the Banking 
Company or such regulatory minimum 
trigger point as is prescribed as per the 
extant RBI directions/ operating guidelines 
at the relevant time;  

4. the date on which the RBI determines that 
the Banking Company has reached a point 
of non-viability (in terms of the Basel III 
Guidelines) and requires the Investor CCPS 

The Investor CCPS shall have principal loss 
absorption through conversion to common 
shares at 4 (Four) objective pre-specified trigger 
point(s) set out below.  

Terms of Conversion 

Voluntary Conversion 

The Investor shall have the right to require an 
automatic conversion of the Investor CCPS at 
any time at its discretion on or after April 1, 
2023. In case of such conversion, the 
conversion price of the Investor CCPS shall be 
INR 2045 crores (INR 389.26 per share). 

 

Mandatory Conversion  

The Investor CCPS shall mandatorily convert into 
Equity Shares of the Banking Company on the 
earlier of: 

(a) 1 (one) day prior to the date on which the 
final prospectus in relation to a potential 
initial public offer of the securities of the 
Banking Company (“IPO”) is filed with the 
relevant Registrar of Companies (“RoC”);  

 

(b) August 31, 2029, if the IPO is not 
completed by August 31, 2029; 

(c) the Banking Company having Common 
Equity Tier 1 capital of 7% (seven percent) 
of the risk weighted assets of the Banking 
Company or such regulatory minimum 
trigger point as is prescribed as per the 
extant RBI directions/ operating guidelines 
at the relevant time;  

(d) the date on which the RBI determines that 
the Banking Company has reached a point 
of non-viability (in terms of the Basel III 
Guidelines) and requires the Investor CCPS 
to be converted into equity shares in 



 

to be converted into equity shares in 
accordance with Annex 16 of the Basel III 
Guidelines. 

Conversion Price if IPO occurs before August 31, 
2029 

1. The conversion price of the Investor CCPS 
shall be at the valuation of INR 3000 Crores 
or the IPO Price, whichever is lower. 

2. The term “IPO Price” shall mean the simple 
average of IPO price band set out in the 
final prospectus filed by the Banking 
Company with the relevant RoC. 

3. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
lower of the abovementioned prices (“IPO 
Converted Shares”).  

Conversion Price if IPO does not occur before 
August 31, 2029  

1. If the IPO is not completed for any reason 
whatsoever on or prior to August 31, 2029, 
then the conversion price (“Valuation 
Price”) shall be determined by a merchant 
banker appointed by the Investor) or INR 
3000 crores, whichever is lower.  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Valuation Price (“Valuation Converted 
Shares”). 

Conversion Price in any other scenario of 
mandatory conversion 

1. The conversion price (“Other Scenario 
Conversion Price”) shall be determined by 
a merchant banker appointed by the 
Investor or INR 3000 crores, whichever is 
lower.  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into equity 
shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Other Scenario Conversion Price (“Other 
Scenario Converted Shares”). 

accordance with Annex 16 of the Basel III 
Guidelines. 

 

Conversion Price if IPO occurs before August 31, 
2029 

1. The conversion price of the Investor CCPS 
shall be at the valuation of INR 2045 Crores 
(INR 389.26 per share). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conversion Price if IPO does not occur before 
August 31, 2029  

1. If the IPO is not completed for any reason 
whatsoever on or prior to August 31, 2029, 
then the conversion price (“Valuation Price”) 
shall be INR 2045 crores (INR 389.26 per 
share).  

 

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Valuation Price (“Valuation Converted 
Shares”). 

Conversion Price in any other scenario of 
mandatory conversion 

1. The conversion price (“Other Scenario 
Conversion Price”) shall be at INR 2045 
crores (INR 389.26 per share).  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into equity 
shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Other Scenario Conversion Price (“Other 
Scenario Converted Shares”). 

 



 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the amended terms of CCPS as set forth be and are hereby approved 
by the equity shareholders. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the preference holders be and hereby accorded to 
amend the terms of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) issued by the Company 
as set forth hereinabove. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director & CEO and Company Secretary are severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution”. 

7. Approval of Preferential issue : 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of sections 42, 55 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder (including but not 
limited to any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the 
Articles of Association of the company, the Securities Subscription Agreement to be entered, the 
provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and regulations and rules 
made thereunder by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the guidelines and clarifications issued by 
the RBI, and any other statutory/regulatory authorities the shareholders hereby accord their 
consent to issue and allot following securities to under private placement basis to Dovetail India 
Fund, Mr. Deepak Talwar, Volrado Venture Partners Fund and Singularity Growth opportunities 
fund (up to 4 tranches): 
a) Upto 8,80,00,000 (Eight Crore Eighty Lakh) fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference 

Shares having a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) per share, at a subscription price of 
Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) per Share, aggregating to the subscription amount of Rs. 
88,00,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Eight Crores) only to Dovetail India Fund. 

b) Upto 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares having a 
face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) per share, at a subscription price of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten 
Only) per Share, aggregating to the subscription amount of Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One 
Crores) only to Mr. Deepak Talwar. 

c) Upto 5,30,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty Lakh) fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference 
Shares having a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) per share, at a subscription price of 
Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) per Share, aggregating to the subscription amount of Rs. 
53,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Three Crores) only to Volrado Venture Partners Fund. 

d) Upto 3,80,00,000 (Three Crore Eighty Lakh) fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible Preference 
Shares having a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) per share, at a subscription price of 
Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) per Share, aggregating to the subscription amount of Rs. 
38,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Eight Crores) only to Singularity Growth opportunities fund. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT: 
a) The shares issued and allotted shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of 

Association and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the Securities 
Subscription Agreement to be entered and shall rank pari passu with the existing Compulsorily 
Convertible Preference Shares of the Company, wherever applicable, in respect of all matters. 



 

b) The offer, issue and allotment of the shares shall be subject to applicable laws, guidelines, 
notifications, rules and regulations. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the names of investor be entered in the register of members of the 
Company as holders of its respective shares allotted to them, and that Ms. Lakshmi R.N, Company 
Secretary be authorized to initial the register of members so updated and amended and provide a 
certified extract of the updated register of members to the Investor. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, the private 
placement offer letter in Form PAS-4 and an application form, to be issued to the proposed 
investors, be and is hereby approved. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, the names 
of proposed investors be recorded in PAS-5 as offerees in relation to the respective securities 
offered to them, as set out above. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the 
powers to any Committee of Directors of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforementioned resolutions the 
Board of the Company and/or such person(s) as the Board may appoint be and is / are hereby 
authorised to do all acts, matters, deeds and things and to take all such steps and do all such 
things and give all such directions as the Board may consider necessary, expedient or desirable in 
order to give effect to the above resolutions and also to settle any questions or difficulties that may 
arise in such manner as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit and take all steps which 
are incidental and ancillary in this connection.” 

8. To fix remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kanwal, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer for the 
financial year 2023-24 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to approval of the Reserve Bank of India, for the payment of 
remuneration to Mr. Ajay Kanwal, for the financial year 2023-24, on the terms and conditions 
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shareholders hereby approve a consolidated remuneration of: 

Particulars  Amount in Rupees 
Fixed pay - 6,02,12,716/- per annum 
Variable pay (restricted to 80% of the fixed pay) 

Cash bonus - 2,25,79,769/- 
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) - 2,25,79,769/- 

Corporate club membership - 1,20,000/- (excluding applicable GST) 

 

 

 



 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan, Director and Mrs. Lakshmi R N, Company 
Secretary of the Company be and is hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required.” 

 
 

By the order of the Board 
For Jana Small Finance Bank Limited 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 20th June 2023 

Lakshmi R. N. 
Company Secretary 

ACS -14234 
Note: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Bank. 

2. The proxy in order to be valid shall be lodged at the registered office address of the Bank not 
less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
is annexed to the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 

4. In the case of corporate member, it is requested to send a certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorising the representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting. 

5. The documents referred to in the Resolutions can be inspected at the Registered Office of the 
Bank in Bengaluru during 11 am to 5 pm on all working days of the Bank. 

6. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December 2022 
extended the timeline for conducting Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) or Extra ordinary 
General Meeting (“EGM”) through video conference mode. Accordingly, the link to attend the 
meeting is: https://bluejeans.com/555499750. 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013. 

Item no. 3: 

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 3 for the approval of the 
Shareholders of the Bank.  

As per the requirement of Regulation 17 (6) (a) and (ca) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, if any 
fees and compensation payable to a single Non-Executive Director exceeds fifty percent (50%) of 
the total remuneration payable to all the Non-Executive Directors, the same shall require approval 
of Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution.  

Pursuant to above said provision, the Bank hereby seeking the approval of the shareholders for 
payment remuneration / fees to Dr. Subhash C Khuntia, which is likely to exceed fifty percent (50%) 
of the total remuneration payable to all the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2023-
24.  

Details of the remuneration / fees payable to Dr. Subhash C. Khuntia is given below: 



 

S. No. Particulars Amount (in Rupees) 
1 Part time Chairman Remuneration (Approved by the Reserve 

Bank of India) 
15,00,000 p.a 

2 Sitting fees for attending each Board meeting 50,000 
3 Sitting fees for attending each Committee meeting 25,000 

In view of the above, the Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 3 for the 
approval of the Shareholders of the Bank.  

Except Dr. Subhash Khuntia, no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is 
concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution. 

Item no. 4: 

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 4 for the approval of the 
Shareholders of the Bank.  

With the view to create a bridge between the Board and top management of the Bank and to further 
strengthen the Banks Top Management team and to cater to the emerging needs of business and 
fast changing technology, it was thought fit to amend the Articles of Association (“AOA”) of the Bank 
to appropriately empower and to allow for creation of the post of Whole Time Director (namely, 
Deputy Managing Director; Executive Director etc.) in the Bank in addition to the position of 
Managing Director & CEO. 

Further, the existing provisions in the AOA only provides for appointment of Chairman, Managing 
Director and Non-Executive Directors. Therefore, with the proposed resolution, it is sought to 
amend the AOA of the Bank to empower the Board for such appointment which will be subject to 
approval of Shareholders and Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”).  

In compliance with Regulation 35B of Banking Regulations Act, 1949 Bank vide letter JSFB/ 
Compliance/ DOR/02/2023-24 dated 02nd May 2023 has submitted its request before RBI to 
approve the amendments in the AOA. The bank is in receipt of approval from the regulator on 13th 
June 2023.  

None of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested financially 
or otherwise, in the said Resolution. 

Item No. 5 

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 5 for the approval of the 
Shareholders of the Bank. 

The Company had implemented equity-based compensation plans, i.e., the ESOP Plan 2017 and 
the ESOP Plan 2018, approved by the members of the Company by way of special resolution on 
June 30, 2017 and April 04, 2018. As per the ESOP Plan 2017 read with the EGM resolution 
passed by the shareholders of the Company to adopt the ESOP Plan 2017, the exercise price for 
an ESOP should be such price as determined by the NRC, which should not be less than the face 
value of the equity shares of the Company and not more than the fair value of the equity shares of 
the Company, as determined by an independent third party on the date of the grant. Similarly, as 



 

per the ESOP Plan 2018 read with the EGM resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company 
to adopt the ESOP Plan 2018, the exercise price for an ESOP should be such price as determined 
by the NRC, which should not be less than the face value of the equity shares of the Company and 
not more than the fair value of the equity shares of the Company, as determined by an independent 
third party valuer. Accordingly, the exercise price of the ESOPs was determined by the NRC and 
intimated to the ESOP holders under the respective grant letters issued by the Company to them. 

The Company has now in the interest of incentivising their employees for their contribution to the 
Company and in light of impending IPO filing, has decided to reduce the exercise price of the ESOPs 
granted to all ESOP holders pursuant to the ESOP Plan 2017 and the ESOP Plan 2018. As per 
provisions of Rule 12 (5) of the SCD Rules and the SEBI Regulations, a company can vary the terms 
of its employee stock options provided that such variation is not prejudicial to the interests of the 
employees and that the proposal is approved by the members by way of a special resolution. Given 
that the exercise price here is being reduced and as a result the payment obligation of an 
employee/ESOP holder reduces to exercise his/her ESOPs, the reduction of the exercise price will 
not be seen as an action that is detrimental or prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders of the 
Company. 

In light of the above, the following actions are proposed to be undertaken: 

a. Exercise Price 
The exercise price of the ESOPs granted under the ESOP Plan 2017 and ESOP Plan 2018, shall 
be reduced from the original price as recorded in the respective grant letters issued to the 
ESOP holders to INR 302.98/- (Indian Rupees Three Hundred and Two and Ninety Eight only).  
The said amount is greater than the face value of equity shares of the Company i.e. INR 10/- 
(Indian Rupees Ten only) per equity share and less than the fair market value of an equity share 
of the Company as determined by an independent valuer, on the grant date.  

b. Revision and re-issuance of the grant letters 
Pursuant to the reduction of the exercise price, the Board and/or the NRC is authorised to 
either directly or through designated representatives issue revised grant letters and/or any 
other form of written communication to all ESOP holders/employees that hold ESOPs to 
intimate them of the change in exercise price, the rationale behind the reduction in exercise 
price and any other information as may be required to be intimated in connection with the 
ESOPs granted to them. 

Item No. 6 

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out in item no. 6 for the approval of the 
Shareholders of the Bank.  

The Company has issued Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) to various investors, 
previously. Now, it is proposed to amend the terms of such CCPS issued by the Company, as 
detailed below: 

 



 

Existing Terms  Revised Terms 

The Investor CCPS shall have principal loss 
absorption through conversion to common 
shares at 4 (Four) objective pre-specified trigger 
point(s) set out below.  

Terms of Conversion 

Voluntary Conversion 

The Investor shall have the right to require an 
automatic conversion of the Investor CCPS at 
any time at its discretion on or after April 1, 
2023. In case of such conversion, the 
conversion price of the Investor CCPS shall be 
determined by a merchant banker appointed by 
the Investor or INR 3000 crores, whichever is 
lower. 

Mandatory Conversion  

The Investor CCPS shall mandatorily convert into 
Equity Shares of the Banking Company on the 
earlier of: 

1. 1 (one) day prior to the date on which the 
final prospectus in relation to a potential 
initial public offer of the securities of the 
Banking Company (“IPO”) is filed with the 
relevant Registrar of Companies (“RoC”);  

 

2. August 31, 2029, if the IPO is not 
completed by August 31, 2029; 

3. the Banking Company having Common 
Equity Tier 1 capital of 7% (seven percent) 
of the risk weighted assets of the Banking 
Company or such regulatory minimum 
trigger point as is prescribed as per the 
extant RBI directions/ operating guidelines 
at the relevant time;  

4. the date on which the RBI determines that 
the Banking Company has reached a point 
of non-viability (in terms of the Basel III 
Guidelines) and requires the Investor CCPS 

The Investor CCPS shall have principal loss 
absorption through conversion to common 
shares at 4 (Four) objective pre-specified trigger 
point(s) set out below.  

Terms of Conversion 

Voluntary Conversion 

The Investor shall have the right to require an 
automatic conversion of the Investor CCPS at 
any time at its discretion on or after April 1, 
2023. In case of such conversion, the 
conversion price of the Investor CCPS shall be 
INR 2045 crores (INR 389.26 per share). 

 

Mandatory Conversion  

The Investor CCPS shall mandatorily convert into 
Equity Shares of the Banking Company on the 
earlier of: 

(a) 1 (one) day prior to the date on which the 
final prospectus in relation to a potential 
initial public offer of the securities of the 
Banking Company (“IPO”) is filed with the 
relevant Registrar of Companies (“RoC”);  

 

(b) August 31, 2029, if the IPO is not 
completed by August 31, 2029; 

(c) the Banking Company having Common 
Equity Tier 1 capital of 7% (seven percent) 
of the risk weighted assets of the Banking 
Company or such regulatory minimum 
trigger point as is prescribed as per the 
extant RBI directions/ operating guidelines 
at the relevant time;  

(d) the date on which the RBI determines that 
the Banking Company has reached a point 
of non-viability (in terms of the Basel III 
Guidelines) and requires the Investor CCPS 
to be converted into equity shares in 



 

to be converted into equity shares in 
accordance with Annex 16 of the Basel III 
Guidelines. 

Conversion Price if IPO occurs before August 31, 
2029 

1. The conversion price of the Investor CCPS 
shall be at the valuation of INR 3000 Crores 
or the IPO Price, whichever is lower. 

2. The term “IPO Price” shall mean the simple 
average of IPO price band set out in the 
final prospectus filed by the Banking 
Company with the relevant RoC. 

3. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
lower of the abovementioned prices (“IPO 
Converted Shares”).  

Conversion Price if IPO does not occur before 
August 31, 2029  

1. If the IPO is not completed for any 
reason whatsoever on or prior to August 
31, 2029, then the conversion price 
(“Valuation Price”) shall be determined 
by a merchant banker appointed by the 
Investor) or INR 3000 crores, whichever 
is lower.  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Valuation Price (“Valuation Converted 
Shares”). 

Conversion Price in any other scenario of 
mandatory conversion 

1. The conversion price (“Other Scenario 
Conversion Price”) shall be determined by 
a merchant banker appointed by the 
Investor or INR 3000 crores, whichever is 
lower.  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into equity 
shares of the Banking Company basis the 

accordance with Annex 16 of the Basel III 
Guidelines. 

 

Conversion Price if IPO occurs before August 31, 
2029 

1. The conversion price of the Investor CCPS 
shall be at the valuation of INR 2045 Crores 
(INR 389.26 per share). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conversion Price if IPO does not occur before 
August 31, 2029  

1. If the IPO is not completed for any reason 
whatsoever on or prior to August 31, 2029, 
then the conversion price (“Valuation Price”) 
shall be INR 2045 crores (INR 389.26 per 
share).  

 

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into Equity 
Shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Valuation Price (“Valuation Converted 
Shares”). 

Conversion Price in any other scenario of 
mandatory conversion 

1. The conversion price (“Other Scenario 
Conversion Price”) shall be at INR 2045 
crores (INR 389.26 per share).  

2. The Investor CCPS shall convert into equity 
shares of the Banking Company basis the 
Other Scenario Conversion Price (“Other 
Scenario Converted Shares”). 

 



 

 

As per the provisions of section 48 of the Companies Act, 2013, the rights attached to the shares 
of any class may be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of not less than three-fourths 
of the issued shares of that class or by means of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting 
of the holders of the issued shares of that class. Provided that if variation by one class of 
shareholders affects the rights of any other class of shareholders, the consent of three-fourths of 
such other class of shareholders shall also be obtained and the provisions of this section shall 
apply to such variation. 

Accordingly, the board of directors at their meeting held on 20th June 2023 have approved the 
modification to the terms of CCPS issued by the Company and recommended the same for approval 
of the equity shareholders by way of special resolution.  

The special resolution for approval of the equity shareholders and preference shareholders is set 
forth in resolution no. 6 of this notice of the annual general meeting.  

None of the directors or their relatives or key managerial persons of the Company or their relatives 
are concerned or interested in the passing of the resolutions in the items set out above. 

Item No. 7 

The resolution at item no. 7 is to issue and allot compulsorily convertible preference shares of the 
Bank (“Shares”) to the Investor for a consideration aggregating up to Rs. 180 crores (Rupees One 
Hundred and eighty crores only ). Information in relation to the issuance and allotment of the 
Shares are set out below: 
a. Nature of such shares: Non – cumulative, Non – participating , compulsorily, convertible  
b. The objects of the issue: For Banking business purposes 
c. Manner of issue: Private Placement  
d. The total number of securities proposed to be issued by way of preferential allotment are 

18,00,00,000 ( Eighteen Crores) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares each of a 
nominal value of Rs. 10 each. 

e. The price or price band at/ within the allotment is proposed is: 
Security Price 
Preference Shares Rs. 10 per Share 

f. The allotment is proposed to be made to the following class/ classes of persons: Domestic 
and Foreign investors. 

g. Expected dilution in Equity share Capital upon conversion of Preference Shares: 59,40,986 
Equity shares would be issued upon conversion considering the current valuation. 

h. The names of the proposed allottees and the percentages of post preferential offer capital 
that may be held by them are set out below: 

Sl.no Names of the Proposed allottees % of holding 

1 Dovetail India Fund 19.6% 
2 Deepak Talwar 0.2% 

Other Scenario Conversion Price (“Other 
Scenario Converted Shares”). 



 

3 Volrado Venture Partners Fund 11.8% 
4 Singularity Growth opportunities fund 8.4% 

i. The allotment is proposed to be completed on or before 31st July 2023. 
j. There shall be no change in control of the Bank consequent to the preferential offer. 
k. The price of the Shares to be issued and allotted to the Investors has been arrived at by a 

registered valuer and the report in this regard has been provided. 
l. the terms of issue, including terms and rate of dividend on each share, etc.; 

‐ fully paid up, 16% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
‐ CCPS shall not be redeemable and shall compulsorily convert to equity shares 
‐ CCPS shall carry a preferential dividend computed at 16% p.a 
‐ Dividend shall not be cumulative 

m. the terms of redemption, including the tenure of redemption, redemption of shares at 
premium and if the preference shares are convertible, the terms of conversion; 

The Investor CCPS shall mandatorily convert into Equity Shares of the Banking Company on the 
earlier of: 

1. The Bank shall have the right to require an automatic conversion of the Investor CCPS at 
any time at its discretion on or before 31st July, 2023. In such case the conversion price of 
the Investor CCPS shall be at Rs. 302.98 per equity share. 

2. the Banking Company having Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 6% (Six percent) of the risk 
weighted assets of the Banking Company or such regulatory minimum trigger point as is 
prescribed as per the extant RBI directions/ operating guidelines at the relevant time;  

3. the date on which the RBI determines that the Banking Company has reached a point of 
non-viability (in terms of the Basel III Guidelines) and requires the Investor CCPS to be 
converted into equity shares in accordance with Annex 16 of the Basel III Guidelines. 

n. the manner and modes of redemption; Not applicable 
o. Current shareholding pattern of the company: 
 

Equity Shares  
Sr. 
No 

Category Pre Issue Post Issue 

  No of shares 
held 

% of share 
holding 

No of shares 
held 

% of 
shareholding 

A Promoters’ 
holding: 

    

1 Indian:     
 Individual - - - - 
 Bodied 

Corporate 
235,75,790 42.88% 235,75,790 42.88% 

 Sub Total 235,75,790 42.88% 235,75,790 42.88% 
2 Foreign 

Promoters 
- -   

 Sub Total (A) 235,75,790 42.88% 235,75,790 42.88% 



 

B Non-
Promoters’ 
holding 

    

1 Institutional 
Investors 

2,01,90,434 36.73% 2,01,90,434 36.73% 

2 Non 
Institution: 

    

 Private 
Corporate 
Bodies 

1,06,86,998 19.44% 1,06,86,998 19.44% 

 Directors and 
Relatives 

- - - - 

 Indian Public 5,22,661 0.95% 5,22,661 0.95% 
 Others 

(Including 
NRIs) 

2,820 0.00% 2,820 0.00% 

 Sub Total (B)     
 GRAND 

TOTAL 
5,49,78,703 100.00% 5,49,78,703 100.00% 

 
 
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 

Sr. 
No 

Category Pre Issue Post Issue 

  No of shares 
held 

% of share 
holding 

No of shares 
held 

% of 
shareholding 

A Promoters’ 
holding: 

    

1 Indian:     
 Individual - - - - 
 Bodied 

Corporate 
- - - - 

 Sub Total - - - - 
2 Foreign 

Promoters 
- - - - 

 Sub Total (A) - - - - 
B Non-

Promoters’ 
holding 

    

1 Institutional 
Investors 

12,00,00,000 44.44% 29,90,00,000 66.44% 

2 Non     



 

Institution: 
 Private 

Corporate 
Bodies 

- - - - 

 Directors 
and 
Relatives 

- - - - 

 Indian Public 15,00,00,000 55.56% 15,00,00,000 33.33% 
 Others 

(Including 
NRIs) 

- - 10,00,000 0.02% 

      
 Sub Total (B) 27,00,00,000 100.00% 45,00,00,000 100.00% 
 GRAND 

TOTAL 
27,00,00,000 100.00% 45,00,00,000 100.00% 

      
 
The Board recommends the Resolutions at item no. 7 of the Notice for the approval of the 
shareholders. 
 
None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is interested or concerned 
financially or otherwise in the Resolution. 

Item No. 8 

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in item no. 8 for the approval of the 
Shareholders of the Bank.  

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors (“Committee”) of the 
company vide their resolution dated 08th May 2023, had recommended the remuneration of          
Mr. Ajay Kanwal for the financial year 2023-24. While recommending the remuneration, the 
Committee reviewed the performance of Mr. Ajay and the Bank during the year 2022-23. 

The Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolution dated 09th May 2023, has approved 
the proposal of remuneration and the same is placed before Shareholders for approval. The 
proposed remuneration shall be paid subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India in line with 
Regulation 35B of Banking Regulation Act, 1949. 

The Brief Profile of Mr. Ajay Kanwal is as under:   

Mr. Ajay Kanwal is a senior consumer and commercial banker with three decades of experience 
across Asia. He has held various leadership positions throughout his banking career and has a 
proven track record of planning and executing strategy to deliver P&L in a multicultural and volatile 
emerging market environment. Ajay has played a significant role in launching several strategic 
growth initiatives while building and managing diverse teams across geographies. 

 



 

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Bank are in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution No. 8 set out at in the notice. 

 By the order of the Board 
For Jana Small Finance Bank Limited 

 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 20th June 2023 

Lakshmi R. N. 
Company Secretary 

ACS -14234 
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